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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mernbers of Nelco Lilnited

Report on the Auttit ofthe Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

we have audited tlre accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial staternents of Nelco Limited (hereinafter

referred to as "(,'the tlolding com"paly"), its subsidiaries (which complise the tlolding compary and its

suUriaiuries together referred to as 'ithe Group") cornprising ol the consolidated Balance sheet as at

March j I 202 I , the consolidated Statement of Pioit and Loss, including othel cotnprehensive. income' the

consolidated Cash Flow statement and the consolidated Statenrent ofchangcs in Lquity for the year then

"na"a'unanotestotheconsolidatedlndASfirrancialstatemcnls,includingasummatyolsignificantaccounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinalier referred 1o as "the consolidated flnancial

In our
on the

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based

ancial information ofthe subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated lnd AS financial statements

sRl:]xlliboi&Associatcsl.l.P.al-imitcdLiabilir)-Padnershipwilhl'l-PldcntitvNoAAB-'1295
Rcgd Olticc:22.Canuc Slreel. Illock (" ldFloor' Kolkata7000l6

give the required by the Companies Act,20l3, as amended ('the.Act") in the manner,so

r-.r"r.i "rl"-i;. 
, itr.lrra r"i, "i"w 

in con-formitv with the accouniiiq plil".ip[t-iji::1'l'":::?:1g
iili", Jrinl?l*.tiar,J r,ri".r"tr"irs of the droup, u, at March 31,20.21, their,consolidated profit

i""f"ai"g other comp..hen.ive income, their consolidited cash flows and the consolidated statement of

changes in equity for the year ended on that date'

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit ofthe consolidated Ind AS linancial statements in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143( l0) ofrhe Act. Our responsibilities under those Slandards

are turther-described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Consolidated lnd AS Financial

sratements, section of our report. we are independent of the Group, in accotdance with the 'code of

Ethics. issued by the Institute ofcharlered Accountants of India together with the ethical req_uirements that

are relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules thereunder'

and we have fulfilled our other ethical respons ib ilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code

of Ethics. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements'

Emphasis of matters

We draw your attention to the following:

Note 29 to the consolidated lnd AS financial statements regarding composite scheme of arrangement

between the Holding Corrpany, Tatanet Services Limited C'TNSL) and Nelco Network Products

Limited(NNPL..IwhichwasapprovedbytheNationalCompanyLawTribunal(,'NCLT,)videits
order daied November 2, 20lg ithe "Scheme,'). As per the NCLT order, the Holding company

intimated the Registrar ofthe companies ("RoC") about the approval ofthe Scheme by NCLT, stating

that Departmentlf Telecommunications ("DoT") approval was not yet obtained. The RoC records

*".",ho*"u"r,updatedtoreflecttheschemeaseffectiveandTNSI'as"amalgamated"withthe
Holding Company. Based on legal advice obtained by the Holding Company' the Holding Company

t.,u. upp".u"t 
"O 

l..icLT to direct ihe RoC to amend their records to reinstate TNSL to its earlier status
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and cancel the effect of the scheme with immediate effect. The decision of NCLT is awaited The

scheme will be given effect to in the financial results on receipt ofall necessary approvals'

b. Note 48 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements regarding the inPut tax credit balances under

the Cenvat/Service tavsales tax considered fully recoverable by the managernent and no provisiorl

made against the same in the books based on the legal advice obtained and the special leave petition

filed by the Holding company with the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India against the order passed by

the l,lon,ble Uigtr C-ourt oi nornbay disallowing the Holding Company's claim to carY forward these

balances on transition to Goods and Services Tax (GST) for future set-otl against GST payable'

Our opinion is not rnodified in respect ofthese matters'

Key Audit Matters

Key audit tnatters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. werc of most significance in our

uuji, of th" consolidated lnd AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 3 1 , 2021 . These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statertents as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In

addition to the rnattei desciibed in the'Emphasis of matters' section, we have detennined the mafters

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each matter below, our

description of how our audit addressed the matter is plovided in that context'

We have detenrined the matters described below to be the key audit lnalters to be communicated in our

report. We have t'ulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's respon s ibilities for the audit ofthe

consolidatedlnd AS financial statements seclion of our report, including in relation to tllese matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the perlormance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of

the risks Jlmaterial misstatement ofihe consolidated Ind AS financial staternents. The results ofour audit

procedures, including the procedures perfbnned to address the matters below, provide the basis for our

audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated lnd AS flnancial statements'

Kev audit matters How our audit add ressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition related to multiple
elemenl arrangements (as described in notes

l.l2 and 2.1(a) ofthe consolidated Ind AS

financia[ statements).

The contracts with customers include multiple
elements including sale ofproducts and ancillary

services like installation, commissioning, annual

maintenance etc. and rental income for
equipments given on lease. ln certain cases, the

contracts also involve multiple entities in the

Group. The identification of performance

obligations under the contracts with customers,

allocation of consideration to the performance

obligations identified and determination of the

timing ofrevenue recognition in accordance with

Ind AS I I 5 requires exercise ofjudgement by the

Group's management.

We considered this to be a Key Audit Matter in
view of the customer contracts being complex

and non-standard.

Our audit procedures included the following:
. We obtained an understanding and evaluated

the design and tested the operating

eft'ectiveness of key controls over revenue

recognition;
. We assessed the appropriateness of the

accounting policies applied by the Company

in line with the applicable accounting

standards.
. We tested contracts with customers on a

san.rple basis to assess the contractual terms

which impacted identification and timing of
perfortnance obligations, allocation of
consideration to these perfonnance

obligations based on detennination of
standalone selling prices and determination of
timing ofrccognition for each ofthese revenue

componentsl
o We per{ormed tests related to non-standard

manual iournal entries related to revenue.

L
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Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we

will not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the Performance Highlights, Corporate Govemance Report, Directors' Report,

Management Discussion and Analysis Report and Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the

"on.oiidut"d 
Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Performance Highlights,

Corporate Govemance Report, Directors' Repo4 Management Discussion and Analysis Report and

Business Responsibility Report is expected to be made available to us after that date ofthis auditor's report.

Assessment of contingent liabilities' provision

for litigations (as described in Note l.l9 and

2.1(f) to the consolidated Ind AS financial state-

ments)

As at March 31, 2021, the ComPanY held

provisions of Rs 67 lakhs and disclosed contin-
gent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) of
Rs 4,799 lakhs in respect of certain tax and

vendor litigations.

The Group faces inquiries from tax authorities
and regulatory authorities during tax assessment

and legal proceedings, during the normal course

ofbusiness. There is a high level ofmanagement
judgement required in estimating the probable

outflow of economic resources and the level of
provisioning and the disclosures required. The

management's assessment is supported by legal

opinions from independent tax consultants and

legal experts obtained by the management.

We considered this to be a key audit maft€r as the

outcome ofthe litigations/ inquiries is uncertain,
including ensuring compliances with the various
regulations and the positions taken by the
management are based on the application of
material judgement, advice from tax consultants

and legal experts, and interpretation of law. The

ultimate outcome of the litigations/inquries could
be different from the conclusion reached by the

management and may significantly impact the

Group's financial position.

The Group's disclosures are included in Note
1.19, 2.1(f) and Note 36 and 37 to the financial
statements, which outlines the accounting policy
for contingent liabilities and details of pending

direct and indirect tax litigation disclosed as

contingent liabilities.

Our audit procedures included the following:
. We obtained an understanding and evaluated

processes and controls designed and

implemented bY the management for
assessment of liti gationsl

. We obtained the list oftaxation and regulatory
litigation matters, communications with the

regulatory authorities, inspecting the

supporting evidence and critically assessing

management's evaluation through discussions

and inquiries made with the management on

both the probability of outcome and the

magnitude of potential outflow of economic

resources;
. Where relevant, we read and relied upon the

most recent legal opinion obtained by
management from indePendent tax

consultants and extemal legal experts to assess

development in all pending cases against the

Company;
o We read recent orders received from the tax

and regulatory authorities and the Company's
responses to such communications and

assessed the current status of the litigations
against the ComPany;

o We obtained direct confirmations from tax
consultants, where considered relevant;

. For tax matters, we involved our tax
specialists to assess management's application
and interpretation of tax legislation affecting
the Company, and to consider the

quantification of exposures and settlements

arising from the disputes with the tax
authorities in the various tax j urisdictions.
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In connection with our audit ofthe consolidated tnd AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such

other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated'

Responsibilities of Management for the consolidated Ind AS Financial statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe

Act with res-"pect to the preparation and presentation ofthese consolidated lnd AS financial statements that

give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance

Including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in

equity oi the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indi4 including

tne tnaian Account'ing Standards (lnd AS) specified under section 133 ofthe Act read with the Companies

(lndian Accounting Siandards) Rules,20l5, as amended by the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

iecond Amendme;t Rules, 2019. The respective Board of Directors ofthe companies included in the Group

are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the

Act foi safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularitiesfselection and application ofappropriate accounting policies; makingjudgments and estimates

thiare reasonable and pruJint; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial

statement; that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the

companies i-ncluded in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group.to continue as a

goini concem, disclosing, as appiicable, matters related to going concem and usingthe going concem basis

if aiounting unless managemint either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no

realistic altemative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for

overseeing the financial reporting process ofthe Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe consolidated Ind AS Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor,s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs willalways detect a material misstatement when

i-t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or enor and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis ofthese consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part ofan audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. tdentifo and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe consolidated Ind AS financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud ma! involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intemal control.
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in tiie circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) ofthe Act, we are also responsible

fo, 
",,pr"rring 

our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate intemal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls'

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management

. Conclude on the appropriateness ofmanagement's use ofthe going concem basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that rnay cast significant doubt on the ability ofthe Group to continue as a going concem.

lf we conclude that a rnaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's

repoft to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are

inad.qrat", to modifo our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the

date ol our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

corrtinue as a going concent.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated lnd AS financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentatiot.t.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or

business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion

on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated

hnancial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our

audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance of the Holding Company and such other entities

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding'

among other mafters, the planned scope and tirning of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identily during our audit'

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have cornplied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we detenrine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit ofthe consolidated lnd AS tlnancial statements forthe financial year ended

March 3 I , 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or wlren, in extremely rare

circumstances. we detennine that a rnatter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the company for the year ended March 3 l, 2020. included in these

standalone Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an

unmodified opiniol on those statements on May 16,2020.
r1
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by Section 143(l) olthe Act, based on our audit and the other financial information of

subsidiaries, as noted in the )oih", matt"r' paragraph we report' to the extent applicable' that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledgeun.-db"li.f*.,"necessarytbrtlrepurposesofourauditoftheaforesaidconsolidated
financial statements:

(b) In oul opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law relating to preparation ofthe aforesaid

consolidarion oithe financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our exanrination

ofthose booksl

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss including the

StatementofotherConrprehensivelncome,theConsolidatedCashFlowStatementand
Consolidated Statement of bhanges in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the

books of account maintained ior the puipote of preparatiott of the consolidated financial

statements:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated lnd AS financial statelnents comply with the
' 

Accouniing Standards specified under Section I 33 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian

Accountin! Standards) itules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (lndian Accou,ting

Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 20191

(e) on the basis ofthe written representations received fiom the directors ofthe Holding Company as

onMarch3l,202ltakenonrecordbytheBoardofDirectorsoftheHoldingCompanyandthe
repofts of the statutory audilors who are appointed under Section | 39 of the Act' of its subsidiary

companies, none ofthe directors ofthe Gioup's companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified

as on March 31,2021 frorn being appointed as a director in tenns ofSection 164 (2) ofthe Act;

(0 with respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness ofthe internal financial controls over

financial reporting of the company with reference to these consolidated lnd AS financial

statelnents of tt " 
Holdirg Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India refer to

our separate Report in "Annexure l'" to this report:

(g) In our opinion, thc managerial remuneration fbr the year ended March 3 l' 2021 has been paid /
- 

provided by the Holding -ompany incorporated in lndia to their directors in accordance with the

provisions ofsection 197 read with Schedule V to the Actl

(h) with respect to the other matteN to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule I I

ofthe companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our intbrrnation and according to the explanations given 10 us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position ofthe Group, in its consolidated lnd AS financial statements

Refer Note 36 and 37 to the consolidated Ind AS tinancial statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including

derivative contracts during the year ended March 3l ,2021
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transfened to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund bY the GrouP.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: I 0 I 049WE300004

Partner
Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 2l2l2230AAAABG2l95
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 28, 202 I

per Vi eet Kedia
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor's Report ofeven date on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements of Nelco Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act. 2013 (*the Act")

In conjunction with our audit ofthe consolidated financial statements ofNelco Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the "Holding Company") as of and for the year ended March 3l, 2021, we have audited the intemal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (he Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") in conjunction with our audit of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements ofthe Group for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components ofinternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance ofadequate intemal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Ac! 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated lnd AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Cuidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143( l0) ofthe Ac! to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both issued by ICAI.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement ofthe consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Group's intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Finanical Reporting With Reference to these
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to consolidated Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and proiedures
that (l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;'and (3) piovide
r_easonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Because ofthe inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections ofany evaluation ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the;isk that the
intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consoiidated Ind AS financial
statements may become inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the degree ofcompliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in Indi4 have maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 1t,ZOZ1, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Cuidance Note issued bv the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: I 0 I 049WE300004

Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 2l2l 2230AAAABG2 195

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 28, 2021

per Vineet Kedia
Paftner
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ASSETS

(al Prope(y, plant and equipment
(b ) Capital wor hin,p rogress

k)Rr8h.oi ure arsets
(d) other ntantibre assets

(e)Frnancialasselt

O nvestm€nts

(iii) Other financial assets
(f) Deferred tax assers (net)
(g) Non-current tar assets (net)
(h) Other non-curent ass€ts

lb)Fi.ancialas5et5
lr)rrade rece vab es

lii)Ca5h and cash equrvatenrs
(iii) Eank balance! other ihan (ii) abov€

(v) Orhe. financiat assers

G) Other cufient assets

TOTATASSEIS

EqutTY ANO LtABLtTtES
Equtry

la)Equty share capital
(b) Olher equity

Reserves and surplus

Other reserves

LIABIUTIES

Non-current liabllitiet
(a) Financlal habllities

(i)Borowinss

iri)rrade p3yab e5

(a)roral outslandin8 due5 of mrcro and smat enrerprises

lb)total outsranding dLres orher than (ii) (a) dbove
(ri) Lease I abrLltres

(i!) other f nancial liabitities

(c) Othe. non,currenr liabil( es

Tolal non-current llabilities

(a) F nanc al liabilities
(i)BorowrnBs

(ii) Irade payables

(a)roral outsrandinS dues of mrcro and smalt enterpnses
(b) rolal outstandin8 due5 other than {ii) (a) above

(ii,) Lease liabilities
(iv) Other financial lrabilities

k)Contrad liabilities

{d) Other curent liabilities

EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES

4la)

a(al

4(b)

5

7la)
8 (a)

3e

9

10 (a)

1l

6

\2
13

7 (b)

8 (b)

10 (b)

8,317

406

1,264

178

16

268

242

737

1,535

10,580

339

902

195

15

115

328

656

2,588

597

1,138

5,814

916

35

60

1,525

147

1,052

7,426

1,311

32

61

!,704

7,578

1,514

161

r,864-

307

,,o93
415

2,870
32s

2,049

6,853

3.772
212

2,694

434

2,990
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N4embership No 212230
Manatint Dlrector & CEO

17 (.)
2L

4(b)

18 (a)

19 (a)

20(a)

17 (b)

2\

4(b)

18 (b)

19 (b)

14

20(b)



Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3L,2027

(a) Purchases o, stock-in-trade
(b) (lncrease) / decrease in inventories of stock-in-trade
(c) Employee benefits expense

(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense
(8) Transponder charges
(h) Other expenses

Profit before exceptional items
Exceptionalitem

Profit before tax
ax expense

- Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustment of current tax for prior year

- Oeferred tax credit
otal tax expense

comprehensive income
that wlll not be reclassified to proflt or losr ln subrequent periods

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
other comprehensive income

comprehensive inaome for the year
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs 1O/- per share) (Basic and diluted)

22

23(a)

23(b)

22,496

2,889
(86)

3,41!
953

2,230

5,493

Nelco Limited
Consolidated

Summary of significant accounting policies. t
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consoiidated financial statements

For S.R. Batlibol & Assoclates llp
Firm Registration Number | 101049WE3OOOO4

Chartered Accountants

For and on behall ofthe Board of Oire.tors oI
NETCO LIMITED

Member5hip No.212230

flltNr
\tn|t ^ ;.-t,L Lv "-- - !z .-

R. R. thinge
Chairman
(DlN:00036557)

Place:Mumbai
Date : April 28, 2021

Iury
ctry,rf'

Company Secretary & Head - Legal

4*h
?* ( r'ruruear )--;wt Mana8ing Director & CEO

(DrN:10s118177)
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28

28

22,242

3,37 4
(263

3,361
1,313

2,002

4,247

1,588
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Nelco Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount Rs n Lokhs. unless othetwise mentloned)

A. Equity share capitar -................---
Equity shares of Rs. 1O each issued, subscribed and fuily paid

Particulars Amount
As at March 31,2019 2,282
Chan8es in equrty share caortal

As at March 31, 2020 2,282
Chan8es in equity share capital
As at March 31,2021 2,282

*For financial year ended March 31,2020, the Board of Directors had recommended a divide nd of 72y. \2079:15%) which was Rs. 1.20l- (2019r Rs.1 50/') per equitY share of Rs'10/- each, which is approved by shareholders in the Annual 6eneral lvieeting of the company hetd on AuSust 13, 2020.

Summary of siSnificant accountint policies. 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi& Associates LLp

Firm Registration Number : 101O49WE3OO0O4
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board ot Directorr of
NEI.CO TIMITED

A

w^4-
Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership No.212230 (Dt

tlt

Ni00036557)

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 28, 2021

\
I r\\

MUMSA

B.Other Equity

Attributable to equity shareholdeE

Particulars
Reserves and Surplus Other Reserves

Total
General

Reserve

Retained

earnints
FVOCT

Equity instrument
As at March 31,2019
Profit for the year
Dividend paid+

Dividend distribution tax paid+

Other comprehensive inconre for the vear (net of tax)

250 3,040

r.,438

(343)

(60)

(31)

12 3,302
1,438
(343)

(60)

131)A5 dr rvrarrcn JI, zuzu
Profit for the year

Dividend paid*

Other comprehensive income for the year (net oftax)

250 4,O45

1,236

lz't 4)

28

L2 4,3O7

7,236

1274)
28

As at March 31,2021 2s0 5,034 12 5,296

liD!=^ 5*r
R. R. Bhinge

Chairman

Place rMumbai
Date r April 28,2021

P.J. Nath
Managing Director & CEO

Uday Banerfee

Chief Finandial Officer Company Eecretary & Head - Legal

(DlN:i05U8177)



Nelco Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2021

unless othetwise

NAVI
MUMBAI

A. CASH FIOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile protit before tax to net cash flows
Depreclation and amortisation expense
Finance Costs

Unrealised mark to market (gain)/ loss on forward contracts
Unrealised foreign exchange {gain)/ toss (net)
lmpairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Gain on dlsposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Proflt on sale of investment in associate
UnwlndinB of discount on financial asset measured at amortised cost
lnterest lncome classified as investing cash flow
lnterest income
Amortisation of processing fees
Operatint Profit Belore Worktnt Capital ChanBes

Movement in working capital
- (lncrease)/ oecrease in trade receivables
' (lncrease)/ Oecrease ln other current assets
- (lncrease)/ Decrease in other non current assets
- (lncrease) / Decrease in financial assets - non current - loans
- (lncrease) / Decrease in inventories

(lncrease)/ Decrease in other financial as5ets - current
- (lncrease) / Decrease n other financial assets ,non current

(lncrease)/ Decrease in financial assets current - loans
' (lncrease)/ Decrease in other bank balances

(Decrease)/ tncrease in trade payables

'(Decrease)/ lncrease in other financial liabi ities - non current
(DecreaseJ/ 'ncrease in other ,rabilit.es . non current

'(Decrease)/ lncrease in provisions - non current
(oecrease)/ lncrease in other financial liabilities , current

- (Decrease)/ ncrease in current contract liabilities
- (Decrease)/ lncrease in other current liabilities
'(Decrease)/ tncrease in provislons - current

Cash generated from operations
' Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow tenerated from / (used in) operatint activitles ( A)

B. CASH FtOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets

Proceeds from saie of property, piant and equipment / intangible assets
lnterest received

Proceeds from sale of investment in Assoclate CompanV
Bank Balance not considered as cash and cash equ valents- deposits placed
Net cash flow generated from / (used tn) investing activities (B)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds f rom borrowings
- Receipts

- Payments

Proceeds from sales and lease back
Payment of principal portior of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Finance costs paid

Dividend Paid (including divided distribut]on tax)
Net cash ,low tenerated from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net (Decrease)/ in.rease in Cash & Cash Equivatents I(A)+(B)+(C)l

Cash and .ash equivalents at the betinnin8 of the vear

Cash cash at the end of the

(4,800)

11

1.07

677

7,8L6

1t2,377)
1,294

.223l,

{133)
(808)

77,521.

(15,204)

(192)

(91)

(1,184)

1,588

2,230
953

(133

71

189

(28

4,725

1,023

152
(110

(1s3

(86,

48

86

(3)

7

(4)

(3)

\2s)
66



Nelco Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2O2l

in Lokhs, unless

Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of: As at
March 31. 2021

As at
March 31. 2020

a) Balance with scheduled banks in current accounts
b)Cash on Hand

c)Cheques on Hand

d) Bank Overdraft
Total

505

1

409

17261

1,069

1

24L
(1,0s8)

190 253

Summary of signiftcant accounting pottctes.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates [tP
Firm Registratlon Number : 101049WE300004

Chartered Accountants

Place : Mumbai

Date i April28,2021

1

For and on behall of the Board oI Directors of
NEI-CO I.IMITED

Place : Mumbai

Date : April 28, 2021

R. R. Shinte
Chairman
(DlN: 000365S7)

^ .'n f
\ \sd'-
h"z

P.J, Nath

Managing Oirect,

1/\-

Company Secretary & Head -

Legal

Oirector & CEO

lNr 05118177) -

Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership No.212230

Uday Ba*rjee
Chief Fin;ncial Oficer



Nelco Limited
Notes annexed to and part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the

General lnformation

Nelco Limited (Formerly known as National Ekco Radio & Engineering co Ltd) herein after referred to as .,the Company,,was
established in 1940. The Company is a subsidiary ofThe Tata power Company Limited.

The company is engaged in business of providing systems and solutions in the areas of vsAT connectivity and lntegrated
security & surveillance The company offers a range of innovative and customized solutions for businesses and government
institutions under one roof.

The Company's subsidiary Tatanet Services Limited is in the business of providing domestic satellite communication
services to closed user group (CUG) networks via Satellite System on non-exclusive basis within the territorial boundary of
lndia under the VSAT License granted by Department of Telecommunications (D.O.T.).

Equity shares of the Company are listed in lndia on the Bombay
("NSE"). The registered office of the Company is located at EL-6,
Mumbai - 400710, CIN: 132200MH 1940p1C003164.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in lndian Rupee (lNR) which is also FunctionalCurrency of the Group. The
consolidated financialstatements were authorised for issue by the directors on Apil2g,202L.
l. Summary of Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated,

1.1 Basis of preparation

a. Compliance with tnd AS

The Consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with lndian Accounting Standards {lnd AS)
notified under Section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time.

b. Historical Cost Convention
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

' certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair valuej
r defined benefit and other long-term employee benefitsj
. asset held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell.

c, Current -non current classification
AII assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Group's normal operating cycle and
other criteria as set out in the Division ll of Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products
arrd the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
iiroup has ascerta rlctl its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpese of current or non-current classification of
;rsset5 ano liabilities.

d. New and amended Standards adopted by the Group.
During the year no new accounting standards have been adopted by the Group.
During the previous year, the Sroup has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their
annual reporting perjod commencing April 1, 2019:
- lnd AS 116, Leases,

- Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments Appendix C to lnd AS 12, lncome Taxes,
- Plan amendment, c(\tajlrnent or settlernr.nt::Amendmbnt to tnd AS 19, Employee Benefits,

Stock Exchange ("BSE") and The National Stock Exchange
TTC lndustrial Area, MIDC, Electronic Zone, Mahape, Navi

Y
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Nelco Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, zozl

- Amendment to lnd AS 103 , Business combinations,
- Amendment to lnd AS 12, lncome Taxes,
- Amendment to lnd AS 23, Borrowang costs.

The group had to change its accounting policies following the adoption of tnd AS 116. The other amendments listed
above did not have any impact on the amounts recognrsed in prior periods and are not expected to significantlv affect
the current or future periods.

e. Basis of consolidation
The Company consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and associate (together referred to as "the Group,,). Control
exists when the Parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. power is demonstrated
through existing riShts that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity,s
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the date the company gains control
until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. lntercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that is

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. lf the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for Soodwill is recognised directly in statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the p d isposa l.

r(
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Nelco l-imited
Notes annexed to and forming part of consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31., zo21

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, lnvestments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
acquisition date.

Ch"n""r in rh" Groro,r o*n"rrh,, in,ur"r,, in u*ir,,n".ubrid,ur,", 
"nd "rro.i",",when the group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of loss of control, joint control or

significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognjsed in profit or loss ln addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income inrespect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in the other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss,lf ownership interest injoint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
All items of propeny, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation andaccumulated impairment losses, if any cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of the assets subsequent costs are added to existing item's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset' as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to thegroup and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted tor as a
separate asset is derecognized when repiaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement ofprofit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

a. Capital work-in-progress

Proiects under which Property, PIant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

b. Depreciation methods estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost, net of their estimated residual value, over
their estimated useful lives.

The useful lives and residual values are as prescribed under schedule ll to companies Act, 2013 except for the
following type of assets where useful life is considered as per management estimate, based on technical advice, taking
into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operatin8 conditions of the asset,

v
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Nelco Limited
Notes annexed to and forming of Consolidated Financial Statements for the

Plant and Machinery Rad io frequency (RF) antenna:9Iu"rs
Basic electronics - 6 years

Networking devices - 6 years

RF and baseband - 10 to 12 years

VSAT antenna and parts - 15 years

Office equipment,s - VSAT Antenna - 10 Years

Electronics - 7.50 years

Basic electronics - 6 years

Office equipmentt
Computer hardware

1.3

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in thestatement of profit and loss within other lncome / other Expenses.

lntanglble assets

lntangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisjtion less accumulated amortisation andaccumulated impairment, if any, The Group amortises intangible assets using straight line method over thefollowlng periods.

License Fees - VSAT ; Over the license period of 20 years
License Fees - tsp : Over the license period of 15 years
Testingsoftware :5 years

lmpairment of non-financial Assets1,.4

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carryingamount may not be recoverable An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset,s carrying amountexceeds its recoverable amount rhe recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal andvalue in use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there areseparately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of

I

assets (cash-generating units) Non-financial assets that suffered an rmpairment are reviewed for possible reversal of theimpairment at thelend of each reporting period.

u,-



Nelco Limited
Notes annexed to and formi part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
1.5 Financialinstrument

l,fj|fl::i[:'"Tr"Jj"'i,i;"o"'.tt that gives rise to a rinancrar asset or one entity and a rinanciar riabirity or equity

A. Financial assets

a. lnitial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified' at initial recognition, as subsequentry measured at amortised cost, fair value throughother comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.
The classification of financial assets at initiar recogn;ion depends on the financial asset,s contractuar cash flowcharacteristics and the company's business modet toimanaginl them. with the exception of trade receivabres that donot contain a significant financing component or for *tici tr,e companv has appried the practicar expedient, thecompany initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financjal asset not at fair valuethrough profit or loss' transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or forwhich the company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under lndAS 1r'5 Refer to the accounting poricies in section 1.12 Revenue from contracts with customers.ln order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amonised cost or fair value through ocl, it needs to giverise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (sppl), on the principal amount outstanding. Thisassessment is referred to as the SPPl test and is performed at an instrument rever. Financiar assets with cash frows thatare not sPPl are classified and measured at fair value through profit or ross, irrespective of the business moder.The company's business model for managing financial assits refers to how it manages its financial assets in order togenerate cash flows The business model determines whether cash frows wirr resurt from colecting contractuar cashflows' selling the financialassets, or both Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are herd within abusiness model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractuar cash flows whire financialassets classified and measured at fair value through ocl are held within a business model with the objective of bothholding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation orconvention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

b. Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financiar assets are crassified in four categories:

. Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments). Financral as5ets at fair vdlue through other comprehensive
and losses (debt instruments)

. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with
derecognition (equity instruments)

. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments):
A'financialasset'is measured at the amortised cost if both the following co,ditions are met:The asset is held 

\\hrn 
a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains

no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon

l(
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Nelco Limited

of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

i.

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

flows that are solely payments of principal and

This cateSory is the most relevant to the Group. After initlal measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss. The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate
and loan to a director included under other non-current financialassets.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments):
A 'financial asset' is classified as at the Fwocr if both of the following criteria are metl
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

The asset's contractualcash flows represent Sppl.
Debt instruments included within the Fwocl category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. For debt instruments, at fair value through ocl, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCl. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value changes recognised in ocr is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCt (equity instruments):
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through oCl when they meet the definition of equity under lnd AS 32 Financial lnstruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent conslderation recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which lnd AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. Gains and losses on these financialassets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right
of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in ocl. Equity instruments designated at fair value through
ocl are not subject to impairment assessment. The Group elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity
investments u nder this categorv.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Financialassets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through ocl. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group,s consolidated balance sheet) when:

o The rights tn receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

62zl AT,
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Nelco Limited
Notes annexed to and forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the ended March 31,2021

' The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to paythe received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ,pass-through,arrangement; 
andeither

i the group has transferred substantiafly al the risks and rewards ofthe asset, orii the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset,

when the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. when it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. ln that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained,
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required to
repay.

d. lmpairment of financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:r Disclosures for significant assumptions _ see Note 30
. lnvestment at fair value through OCI _ see Note 5
r Trade receivables and contract assets _ see Note 6

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contrad and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractualterms.
EcLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLS are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12-months (a 12-month EcL) For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective ofthe timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating EcLs. Therefore, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each
reporting date The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. Also, the Group recognises
allowances for any expected losses on account of non-recovery frorr customers on specific cases based on
management estimates.

e. lncome recognition

lnterest lncome

lnterest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. lnterest income is accrued on time basis, by reference
to the prin nding and at the effective interest rate applicable.
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Nelco Limited
Notes annexed to and forming of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Dividend

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend has been established,

B. Financialliabilities

a. lnitial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loansand borrowings, payables, as appropriate.
All financial liabil'ties are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net ofdirectly attributable transaction costs.
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

b. Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financiar riabirities are crassified in two categories:. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
. Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the nearterm This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated ashedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by lnd AS L09. separated embedded deravatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
throuSh profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in lnd As 1og are
satisfied For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in ocl rhese gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to p&1. However, the group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings):
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the ElR The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generalry appries to borrowings. For more information refer Note 17.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. when
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an are

r
antiailyflfiedsu bsta ntia llylmodified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
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the oriSinal liabilitv and the recognition of a new liabirity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts isrecognised in the statement of profit and loss.

1.6 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, depositsheld at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three monthsor less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subiect to an insignificant risk of chanSes invalue' and bank overdraft Bank overdraft are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

1.7 Trade receivable

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost usangthe effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

1.8 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services received by the group prior to the end of reporting periodwhich are unpaid Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment as not due within 12months after the reporting period They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured atamortised cost using effective interest method.

1.9 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legallyenforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assetand settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events must beenforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or thecou nterparty.

1.10 lnventories

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of purchases andincludes all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. cost is determined
using the weighted average method and is net of provision for obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whereverconsidered necessary costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisablevalue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and theestimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classifjed as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They aremeasured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from emproyee benefits, which are specificaly exempt from this requirement.
An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less
costs to sell A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group),
but not jn excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the
date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-recognition.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented

:eearalelY 
from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are

other liabilities in the balance sheet.
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r

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and thatrepresents a separate major line of business, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business. Theresults of discontinued operations are presented separatelyin the statement of profit and loss.
1.12 Revenue recognition

The Group earns revenue from providing satellite communication connectivity systems and solutions through sale ofSoods (lncluding vsAT's)' providing installation and annual maintenance services, renting of goods, rntegrated security &Surveillance services The Group also earns revenue from providing domestic satellite communication services to closeduser group (cuG) networks via saterite system on non-excrusive basis (Bandwidth services).
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that refrects theconsideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.
The Group recognises revenue as follows:

a, Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer, bejngwhen the goods are delivered to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer,sacceptance of the goods Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped to the specific location, the risks ofobsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the goods inaccordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the company has objective evidencethat all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
b. Rendering of Services

' Revenue from annual maintenance contract and network management is recognized over the period ofperforma nce.

'Revenue from lnstallation and commissioning services is recognized upon completion of installation ofeq u ipment.

'Revenue from bandwidth services is provided over the period of time, where it is received and consumedsimultaneously by the customers and accordingly revenue is recognized over the period of performance and inthe accounting period in which the services are rendered.
c. Rental lncome

Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised on straight-line basis over the termof the relevant lease in accordance with contract with the customers.

1.13 Foreign currency translation

a. Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the primary economicenvironment in whjch the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The consolidated financialstatement is presentedin lndian rupee (lNR), which is Nelco Limited,s functionaland presentation currency.

b. Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency u5ing the exchange rates at the dates of thetransactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from thetranslation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates arerecognisF( in the statement of profit and loss.Ym

lr
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Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrolr,. _rrle*, *_and loss, within rinance costs. Ariother rorergn exchange gains,"; ;::":::;:l.,",'"T[i;:::]ff.., or prorit andloss on a net basis within other income / oth", 
"rp"rr"r. 

-

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a fo

:I"T:::iil:::';:'l:" was determ ned rransaton,;:?[:1il':'TJ:'ff:ilH#il:'iil::ji'::lJ

f! lr:;nrli: ;,rTil*:*# 
;fi*T:*!,:;]i ir:, T ::m j* :"x::x;:*ll

Fvocl are recognised in other comprehensive income. 
'monetary assets such as equity investments classifjed as

14 Derivative financial instruments:
The group holds derivat've financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk ofchanges in exchange rates on foreign currency exposurer. ,,i" .orn,"rourty for these contracts is generary a bank.Although the Sroup believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic ,"^0".rr", they may not quarifyfor hedge accounting under lnd AS 109, Financial lnstruments, Any derivatve is categorized as a financiar asset or financiarliability' at fair value through profit or loss Derivatives are recognized initialy at fair varue and attributabre transactioncosts are recognized in net profit in the consolidated statement of profit and Loss, when incurred. subsequent to initiarrecognition' these derivatives are measured at fair value through the statement of profit and Loss and the resultingexchange gains or losses are included in the statement of Profit and Loss. Assets/ Iiabilities in this category are presented

:;"il::::rr""":1r.'jJ:it 
riabirities if thev are either herd for tradins or are expected to be rearized wjthin 12 months after

1.15 Current and deferred tax
The lncome tax expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period,s taxable income based on theapplicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and riabirities attributabre totemporary differences and to unused tax losses.

current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and ross, except to the extent that it rerates to itemsrecognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. rn this case, the tax is arso recognised in othercomprehensive income or directly jn equity, respectively.

a. Current Tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end ofthe reporting period' Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations inwhich applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, rt establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis ofamounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intendseither to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between.the taxbases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financialstatements, However, deferred tax assets and

l]::l::::":J::.::::::::^l 
it.arises from initiar recosnition or.n .,,", or riabirity in a transaction other than
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Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or thedeferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and carry forward taxcredits only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences, tax
losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets andliabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

1.16 Leases

Till March 31,2019

As a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the group as lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership is classified as finance lease Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost rhe finance cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant period ic rate of interest on the remaining ba lance of the lia bility for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the group as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the group's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits
accrue lnitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
With effect from Aoril L, 2019

As a lessee

From April 1, 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leases asset is available for use by the 8roup. contracts may contain lease and non-lease component. The group allocates
the consideration in the contract to lease and non-lease component based on their relative standalone prices.
Assets and liabilities are initially measured on the present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

' fixed payments (incruding in-substance fixed payments), ress any rease incentives receivabre
o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initaally measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date.
. amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees.

' the exercise price of purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise the option and. payment of pe{lElties for

VK
the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising that option.
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of theliability The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate impricit in the rease. rf the rate cannot be readirydetermined' which is generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate rs used, being therate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of simirar varue to therigh.-of-use asset in simirar economic environment with simirar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:r where possible' uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting points, adjusted toreflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was receivede uses a build-up approach that starts with Risk- free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the group,which doesn't have recent third party financing, and. makes adjustments specific to the lease e.g. term, security etc

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit and loss over thelease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right of use assets are measured at cost comprising the following;. The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

' Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date ress any rease incentives received. Any initial direct cost, and
. Restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on straight linebasis lf the group is reasonably certain to exercise purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over theunderlying asset's useful life.

leases and allthe leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
leases are leases with a term of lease term of 12 months or less.

As a lessor

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewardsincidentalto ownership to the lessee. Finance leases receivables are recocgnised at the inception of lease at the fair valueof the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments receivable. Each lease payment
received is allocated between the finance lease receivable and finance income. The finance income is recognised to thestatement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance ofthe finance lease receivable for each period.

Payments associated with short-term
line basis in profit and loss. Shon term

as a result of ng the new leasing standard.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term, lnitialdirect costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying assets andrecognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included inbalance sheet based on their nature. The group did not make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor

Y
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1.17 Borrowint

v

Borrowing are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequentry measuredat amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction .o*r1 an'a tnu redemption amount isrecognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on theestablishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probabre that someor all ofthe facility will be drawn down ln this case, the fee is deferred untir the draw down occurs. To the extent there isno evidence that it is probable.that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitarised as a prepaymentfor liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled orexpired The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liabiljty that has been extinguished or transferred to

;:"":i::ijxl 
t""he consideration paid, includins anv non-cash assets transferred or tiabitities assumed, is recosnised in

Borrowings are classified a

ab ty ror at east 12 ,;:1j;:i',['J:H:ffi: ]: ffi::" l;:,1,:l::::Hi:, ;:ii.:: ;,"j;: :T*:::[iJl;loan agreement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable ondemand on the reponing date, the entity does not classiiy the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reportingperiod and before the approval of the financjal statements fbreach. 
,,,,o,,r,d, sldLerrenrs ror rssue/ not to demand payment as a consequence ofthe

1.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of aqualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to comprete and prepare the asset for jts

;::il::: ffi;l;jle 
QualirvinB assets are assets that necessariry take a substantiar period or time to set ready ror their

lnvestment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifyingassets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

a. Provisions

Provlsions are recognised when the Group has a present legalor constructive obligation as a result of past events, it isprobable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obrigation and the amount can be reliablyestimated. provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle thepresent obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Theincrease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditure arising from the restructuring, whichare both neclsarY entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the group.

W
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i) Onerous Contracts
present obligations arising under onerous contracts
contract is considered to exist where,h" G,.,;;;,;.ffilffi;:#:rT;",:'.ff:r1".:::"j;ll.ili,l,ij
obli8ations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

ii) Warranties
provisions for the ex

m ; 
j:;*j1"1Irff : ;,ffil:rilL1.*;*:: Jti::]::ffi *_,",:i1;ffjxT:,ffi ::1t::1,ij ;l:

b. Contingentliabilities

The group has contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possibre obrigation arising from past events, theexistence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrencr
not who'v within the contror or the sroup or a ,,",",. "r,lilli ."n:'i"'.",1T;liT:::ffi:ffi::il,tlrff }Tj:probable that an outflow of resources will be required ,o ,"u,", o, u reriabre estimate ora* iroun, ."rnot be made.c. Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1,20 Employee benefits
a. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for salaries and wa
who,v w th n 12 months .-iiii; lilii":T.x"T::Tiffi'":T,fi:::"1J,:1il::,:[i"T:"Il"J:: ,,:.ffi:::::respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be

:;::,:'"'the 
liabilities are settled The liabilities .r" pr.r"ni"d as current emproyee benefit obrigations in the barance

b. Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The group has liabilities for compensated absences which are not expected to be settred whory within 12 months afterthe end of the reporting period in which the employees render the rerated service. They are therefore measured at thepresent value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by emproyees up to the end of thereporting period using the proiected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the ,ppropriate market yierdat the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the rerated obrigations. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuariar assumptions are recognised in thestatement of profit and loss.

The obligation is presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditionar right to

Hil:i;:.T 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardress of when the actuar settrement is

c, Post-employment obligations (Defi ned Benefit Obligations)
The group operates the following post_employment sah"rar,'

. defined benefit plans _ Gratuity and provident Fund
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Defined Benefit plans

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit provident fund and gratuity prans isthe present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined beneflt obli8ation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimatedfuture cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that haveterms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discountrate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of pran assets, This cost is incruded inemployee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, changes in actuarial assumptaons and return onplan assets (excluding interest income) are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in othercomprehensive income They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in thebalance sheet Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments orcurtailments are recognised immediately ln profit or loss as past service cost.
Defined contribution plans

Group pays superannuation Fund and Eslc contributions to publicly administered funds as per local regulations. Thegroup has no further payment obligation once the contribution has been made. Group,s contribution tosuperannuation Fund and Esrc is recognised on accruar basis in the statement of profit and Loss.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the normal retirement date, orwhen an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The group recognises terminationbenefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the grlr, .un no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits ;and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring ttrat is within the scope of lnd As 37 and involves thepayment of termination benefits' ln the case of an offer made to encourage voruntary redundancy, the terminationbenefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than12 months after the end of the reporting period a re discounted to present value.

Segment reporting
The board of directors assesses performance of the group as ChiefOperating Decision Maker.
The group has identified following 1 reportable segment, in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to thechief operating decision maker i e Network systems comprises sale of Very small Aperture Terminals (,,vsAT,,) hardwareand providing allied services consisting of network management, project management, infrastructure services, turnkeysolutions for satellite communication systems, and co-location services to customers. (Refer note 42 for segmentreportjng).

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

7.22

W



Nelco Limited

Notes annexed to and of Consolidated Financial Statements for the ended March 31, 2021

1.23 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. the profit attributable to owners ofthe group

. by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into

accou nt:

. the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares,

and

. the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

2.1 Critical estimates and rudgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty: -

ln the application of the groups's accounting policies, which are described in note 1 above, the management of the

group is required to make.ludgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

ln the following areas the management of the group has made critical judgements and estimates

a) Revenue recognition
. The Group's contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple goods and services to a

customer. The Group assesses the goods / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance

obligations in the contract. ldentification of distinct performance obligation involves.iudgement to determine the

deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables. Each revenue

component is reco8nised based on the policY noted in Note 1.12 above.

. The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation by

the Group Companies. The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of

the relative standalone selling price of each distinct goods or service promised in the contract. Where standalone

selling price is not observable, the Group uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction

price to each distinct performance obligation

. The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time

or over a period of time, The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are

rendered.

. Contract fulfilment costs are expensed as incurred.

bl Estimation of defined benefit oblitation
The group has defined benefit plans for its employees which are actuarially valued, Such valuation is based on many

estimates and other factors, which may

assets and lhbi

l
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c) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for based on estimated future taxable rate on all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and carry forward tax credits only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be

available to utilize those temporary differences, tax losses and tax credits. The management assumes that taxable
profits will be available while recognising deferred tax assets.

d) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and lntangible assets

The group reviews the useful lives and carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at
the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation expense

in future periods.

e) Expected Credit Loss on trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has

been managed by the group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On

account of adoption of lnd AS 109, the group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The

Sroup uses a provision matrix and forward-looking information and an assessment of the credit risk over the
expected life of the financial asset to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. (Refer

Note 31)

fl Estimation of Provisions & Contingent Liabilities

The group exercises jud8ment in measuring and recoBnising provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities

which is related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims. ludgment is necessary in assessing the likelihood

that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial

settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual liability may be different from the

originally estimated as provision or contingent liability. (Refer Note No 36 and 37)

8) Leases

The group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of lnd AS 116. Assessing

whether a contract contains a lease requires significant judgment. Signiflcant judgement is also required in

assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered

by an option to extend the lease if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by

an option to terminate the lease if the group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. ln assessing whether

the group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a

lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the group to exercase

the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The group revises the lease

term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a

portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

3. Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the

tl

reouirement of Schedule

krc
unless otherwise stated.
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Nelco Limited
Note5 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 4{b): Rjtht-of-use assetsand tease tiabitities

aprit 1, 2020
Durinttheyear

March 31,2021
change in accounting

Additiont

teasehold paemises and equipments 519

2t9
1715)

(302)

28

164)

1,501

(s2)

36

54

(6s)

79

(26)

180

11141

176

(109)

521

(619)

1,759

(219)
Total 838

,r.or$
7,629

l54l

35

{s2)

133

(91)

356

t283)

2,24O

(838)
Current 212

526

(200)

(8r8)

416

(212)

1,864

(526)
838

11.018)
2,2A0

1838)

Arnount recognised ln Statemenr ot protit or toss

March 31, 2021 Ma.ch 31,2020
Deprecielion of Right-of -use assett
lnterest on leare liabilities

Expenses related to shon t€rm teas€s

420
133

200
81

50

Frgur€s in (brackers) rep.esents previous year,s figures.

iii. Amount re(oSnised in Statement of profit or loss

p.evrous year s fiBurer.

4(b).ll 6roup rs lessor

11)Operar nEleases realed roVSAT5Biven on ease, owned by the Eroup with lease terms between J lo 7 vears
l2) The less€e doe5 not have an option to pur.hase the VSAT5 ar rhe exp ry of the tease period
(3) No refundab edepos ts are taken and lhe leas€ renlalt recoSnised in the consolidated statement of profil and Loss for the year included under sate ot services

under revenue liom Operarions (refer note 22) aggretate to Rs 2,743 Lakhs ( 202O Rs 2,641 Lakhs).

Non- Cancellable operatint lease receivables

March 3r,2021 March 31,2020

Laterthan l year andnot ton8erthan 5veart
1,721

2,679
1,098

3,414

288
Total 3,806 4,800

iv.Amount reco8nked in statement ofcash ftow.

statement of cash flowr I v"",e.aio f-v"",
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Disaggr€tation ofproperry, ptantand equipmenr8iven on operating tease as at March 3l,2O2t is as toltows:

Classofassets qperatinB tease

Oepreciation

5,589

17,843)

2,518

11,800)

4,117
16 043l

Totat 5,689

{7,843)

2,518

Figures in (brackets) represents



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 5 : lnvestments - Non current

Systems Limited (refer note 1 below)

lnvestments at fair value through OCt (Unquoted,Iulty paid)
echnopolis Knowledge park Lamited J(net of impairment of Rs.t 81 Lakhs

2020: Rs. 181 Lakhs)l

amount of unquoted investments
amount of impairment in the value of investments

Notes :

Group's ownership interest in an Associate

statements for the year ended March 31, 2O2O Irefer note 23(b)].

1) During the year ended March 31, 2020, the company sold investments in Nelito systems Limited (associate company), which was classified as assetsheld for sale in the previous year. The resultant Sain on sale of investments has been disclosed as an exceptional item in the consolidated financial

tN

Particulars
As at

March 11 ?o71
As at

March 31.2020
Numoers I Amount Numbera Amount

18,10,000

6,000 L6

18,10,000

6,000 16

16

16

16

(181)

16

16

16

{181)



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwise mentioned)

Note 6 iTrad€ receivables

1. Trade receivables are dues in respect of goods sold and seNices rend€red in the normal course of business.
2. Trade receivables are non-interest bearinS and are generally on terms ofO to 60 days,
3 The group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit toss allowance tor trade receivables based on

a detailed analysis of trade receivables.
4' There are no dues bv directors or other officersofthe Sroup or any ofthem either severally orjointlywith anyother person

or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any dir€ctor is a partner or a director is a member.

Note 7 : Loans

(a) Non-current

As at
tvlarch 31, 2021

As at

March 31,2020
Trade receivables from contract with customers
Trade receivables from contract with customers- related parties (refer note 44)

Iess : lmpairment allowaoce (allowance for bad and doubtful debtsl

6,156

1

(343)

7,164

!2
(1s4)

Total
5,814 7,026

areak-up of security Oetails

Particulars

March 31,2021
As at

March 31,2020
Trade receivables considered good - secured
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade recervables - credrt imoarred

6,L57 7,180

6,157 7,180
lmpairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtfuldebt, (343) (1s4)
TotalTrade receivable

5,814 7,026

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31,2020

Loan to employees
267

1

114

1
rotat

268 115

details

Particular5 Ai at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31,2020

Loans considered good Secured
Loans considered good - Unsecured
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk
Loans'credit impaired

268 115

Total
268 115

Less : loss allowance
Total 268 115

Current

March 31,2021
A5 at

March 31, 2020
Security deposits
Loans to employees
Less : Loss allowance

77

4
(211

83

5

(21)

50 67

details

Particularc

March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Loans considered good - Secured

Loans considered good - Unsecured
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk
Loans - credit impaired

81 88

Total
81 88

Less : Loss allowance l2L (21
Ptal 60 5,1



Nelco t-imited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 8: Other flnancialassets

held as margin money a6atnst bankluara,rte-es

value of foreign exchange forward contract

7,761

1

38

435

63

particulars

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31,2020

Add : Tax dedLrcted at source and advance tax
lNet of provis on for tax of Rs. 2,1S8 takhs (2020: Rs. 1,561 lakhs)l
Add i Mat credit utilised durinS the year
Less: lncome tax ref!nd
Less'Current tar payable for the vear

2,588

428

164
(1,048)

(s97)

2,141

7,171

(431)

(499)
Closing balance

1,535 2,588

Note 10:Otherassets

Particulars

March 31, 2021
As at

March 31, 2020
Prepaid expenses

Advance to Suppliers

Balance with government authorities (refer note 48)
Deferred rent expen5es

Others

96

30

2LA

3

102

33

4

27

t?ii:\
[*lr,.ruruier,

\sor\---,

341 499

* \^-

v

T{hl



Nelco [imited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2OZl

Rs in unless otherwise mentioned

DurinB the year ended March 31, 2021, Rs. 43 takhs (2020: Rs. 18 lakhs) has been recognised as an expense in relation to inventory being carried at
net realisable value.

Note 12 : Cash and r

Note 13 i Bank balance other than cash

Note 14 | Contract liabilities

Note:
1. SiSnificant changes in contract liabilities
contract liabilities have been increaSed due to increase in advance received frorn customers and deferred revenue for the services to be rendered
in next year.

1. Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current period relates to a carried forward contract iiabilities and how much
relates to performance obligation satisfied in prior year.

v

Note 11 i lnventories

Particulars As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

lnventories (lower of cost ahd net realisable value)
Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade ln transit
1,138 1,051

1
Total

1,138 1,052

and aash lents

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31,2020

(a) Balances with banks :

ln current accounts
(b) Cheques on hand
(c) Cash on hand

506

409

L

1,069

247

1
Total cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and statement of castr fl,c*, 916 1,311

and cash

Paniculars As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

ln earmarked Accounts
(a) Unpaid dividend accounts
(b) Balances held as marBin money against letter of credit and bank

guarantees

7

2a
5

27

Total

Particulars As at
March 31, 2021

As at
lVarch 31,2020

Advances received from customers
Deferred revenue

1,116

933
1,155

1,834
Total contract liabilities 2,049 2,990

Paniculars Year ended
March 31,2021

Year ended
March 31,2020

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liability balance at the beginnint of the
period

ft:venue recognised from performance obligations satisified in previous periods

2,990 2,260

ah \.

\-\N\-



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated Iinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwise mentioned)

March 31,2021 March 31,2020
AuthOrised share capltali
2,50,00,000 (2,50,00,000 as at March 31,2020)equ ty shares ofRs.lol, each
Redeemable Preference Shares ol Rs.tOO/- each

hsued share capital:
2,28,18,400 (2,28,18,400 as ar March 31, 2O2O) equity shares of Rs.10/- each )

Subscribed and paid-up share capitat:
2,28,1,7 ,467 12,28,U ,461 as ar March 31, 2020)equtry shares of Rs.10/ each )

Total

2,5@
2,500

2,500
2.500

5,000

2,282

5,000

2,282
2,242

2,142

z,zaz

2,282
2,242 2,242

(i) Movement in equity rhare.apital
There has been no movement in issued, subscribed and paid up share capitar of the troup, durrnS the rast five years

(iii)Termsandrightsattach€dtoequityshares
The companv has only one class of equitv shares having a par value of Rs.10 /- per share Each hotder ol equity shares is entitted to one vote per share. Ihe company deciares
and pays dlvidends in hdian Rupees.

TheEoardofdirectorshaverecommendeddividendofRs.l.20/-perequltysharefortheyearendedMarch3l,2o2l.ThedlvidendproposedbytheBoardotDirectorsssubject
to the approvalof the rhareholde6 in the ensu ng AnnuatGeferat [,4eeting.

Ihe distribution will be in proporion to rhe number of equity shares hetd bv rhe shareho de6

As p€r records ol the companY and other declarations received from shareho de6, the above sharehotding represents both tegatand benefic atownerships ofshares

(v)939 shares (March 31,2020 : 939 shares) are kept in abeyance out of the righrs ss!ed tn rhe year 1994 pendin8 for finat alotment

lvi) rhere are .o shares boutht back or allotted either as fully paid up bv way of bonus shares or alrotted under any conkacr w thout payment received in cash during 5 years
ny\ediately preceding March 31, 2021

l

their

March 31.2020

Equlty sharer ofRs.10/- each, tully paid up
The Tata Power Company Limited (48.65%)(Holding Company)

Aftaab lnvestment Company Limited (1.44%) (Subsidiary of HotdinB Company)

r,10,99,630

3.28.310

1,110

33

1,10,99,630

3,28,310

1,110

33

Name of shareholder March 31, 2021 March 31,2020

% holding % holding

Equitysharet of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up
The Tata Power Company Llmited 1,10,99,630 44.6501 1,10,99,630 48.65%

{ L



Nelco Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 16: Other

Particulars As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

General reserve, Refer {i) below
Retained earnings - Refer (ii) below

250

5,034

250

4,045
Total 5,284 4,295

General reserve

Particulars As ai As at

Opening balance

Addition during the year
250 250

Closint balance 250 zs0

Retained

Particulars As at
March 31- 2021

As at
March 31.2o2o

Opening balance
Net Profit for the year

Less:- Dividend paid

Less:- Dividend distribution tax paid

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations, net oftax

4,045
1,236

\214)

28

3,040

1,438
(343)

(60)

(31)

Closing Balance 5,034 4,045

Note 16 (a)r Other ReseNe, Reserve for FVOCI instrument
Particulars As at

March 31,2021
As at

March 31, 2020

OpeninS balance

Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments
72 12

Closing Balance 72 L2

Generalreselve
The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created
by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an itern of other comprehensive income, items included in general reserve will not
be reclassified subseqoently to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amount that can be distributed by the group as dividends to its equity
shareholders is determined based on the balance in this reserve and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings

The same reflects surplus/ (deficit) after taxes in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amount that can be distributed by the group as dividends to its
equity shareholders is determined based on the balance in thls reserve and also considering the requirements of the companies Act, 2013.

Reserve for Equity FVOCI instrument
This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehen5ive income, net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings when those assets have been disposed off.
Note on Dividend :-
For financial year ended March 31,2021, the Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of 12% (Rs. 1.20/- per equity share of Rs.1O/- each),
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company

\

)
/



Nelco Limited

Notes to the conrolidated ,inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 17 : Eorrowings

Non -

Particulars

March 31,2021
As at

March 31, 2020
S€cured

li)Term Loanr from bank5 {reter note (,) betow) 1,514 2,948

1,514 2,94a

Particulars

March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Terms of Repayment

{p.a.)

South lndian Bank Limited 84 Repayable in quanerly
equal lnstalments till
Seplember,2022

MCLR + 0.5% Hypothecation of asset

acquired utilizinBthe

lClCl Bank Ltd 141 Repayable ln quanerly

equal instalments till
Match,2022

IMCLR l year

+1.34%
Exclusive charSe overthe
assets, financed by rupee

IOFC Bank Ltd 1,514 2,723 Quarte y innallment be8in
f.om lu y,2019,last date of
nstallment April 30, 2023

MCLF+0 65% Exclusivecha.geon the
V5ATr. valueofVsaTt
inttalled a8ai.n the loan

1,514 2,94a

PaIticulars

March 31,2021. March 31,2020
Loan in forelsn cLrrrencv la)
Unsecured
(i)Term loans from Banks (refer note (i) betow)
Loan in lorelgn currency (a)

Loan n lnd an cuften.v lbr

{i)Term loans from Banks (refer note (i) betow)

{i ) rnter corporate deposirs (refer note (i) be ow)
(lli) B!yers credit (refer note (i) below)

Secured

(i)Term loansfrom banks (refer note (i)betow)
(ii) Bank overdraft (refer nore (t) below)
(iii) 8uye6 credit {refer note (i) below)

Loan in lndian currency(b)

986

986

2,006

15

4,265

600
165

2,O27

726

5,630

I
1,058

158

126 I,223

2,747 6,853

Iotal 3,733 6,853

\l
D

\- A

yl
Yrvti'.;ri9t/ \3.r; rccqDZ



Nelco Limited

Notes to the consglidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwise

Bank loans contain certain debt covenants retating to limitation on indebtedness, deblequity ralio, net Eorrowings to EgITDA ratio and debt servicecoverage ratio, The

limitation on indebtedness covenant gets ruspended ifthe Group meett cenain prescribed criteria, The debt covenant related to limitation on indEbtedness remained

suspended as ofthe date of the authorisation ofthefinanciatstatements. The 6roup ha5 also satisfied allother debt covenants prescribed in th'rerms of bank loan'

(refer note 34).

Z*ou,\
MUM BA U

QWr,9

schedule

March 31,2021 March 31, Z0Z0

Ierms of Repayment Rate of lnteres(p.4.)

IDFC Bank Lrd (Loan in forei8n currency) 986 Bullet repayment payable 2_34.k llnsecured

IOFC Eank Ltd lLoao in lndian curr€ncy) 1,005 1,665 Eullet repayment payable 9.15 %to 10.50%

lClClBank Ltd 1,100 Payable on demand l-l,4CLR 1 year +1.30% Unsecured

Shinhan Bank 1,000 1,500 Payab e on demand 3 Months MCLR +1%

lnter Corporate Deposit 15 600 9 .15% to 10.25% Insecured

IDFC Eank Buyers credit- 765 Payable on demand 2.4O% to 3.24%

The zoroastrian Co-op Bank Limited 7 Payable on demand 3% below bank s MCLR Hypothecation by way of
first charge on the

purchased out of the

Bank's Term Loan

Bank of lndia ' Bank overdraft 142 Payable on demand 2.m % over 1 Bol MCLR +

gSS and 2.s5%over MCLR

+ 8SS

1) First pari passu charte

on curren! assets by way

of hypothecation

2)Second parl passu

charSe on all present and

future fixed assets i.e.

land and building, plant

and machinery situated at

EL-6, TTC lndustrial area,

Mloc, Electroniczone,

Mahape, NaviMumbai

South lndian Bank - bank overdraft 585 834 Payab e on dema nd l year MCLR+ 0.5% Hypolhecation by way of
first charBe on entire
current assets ofthe

Axis Bank Limited - Bank overdraft 224 Payable on demand 3 Months MCLR +1.70% 1) Flrst charge over

current assets ofthe
Group.

2) Flrst charge over fixed

(excludinS the assets

lunded by Zoroaslrian

Bank)and negative lien

on commercia VSAI

3) Corporate Guarantee of

Axis Bank Euyers credit- 158 6 monlhs 1) F,lsl charge over

c!rrent assets ol th€

Group.

2) Fkst charge over fixed

(excluding the assets

funded by zoroastrian

Bank)and negative lien

on commercialVSAT

license

3) Corpor.ie 6uarante€ of

Total 3,733 6,853



Nelco Limited

Noter to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

' Nrart to market Sain is identified and accounted based on the underlyinS contracts. The derivatives are recognised at fajr value throu8h statement of profir and toss.

Not€ 19 : Provislons

debt reconciliation

Palticulars

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Cash & cash equivalents

Sank overdraft
Current borrowings

Lease obligation

Non current borrowings (lncludlng current maturities of long term debt)

916

17261

(3,007)

(2,280)

12,9491

1,311
(1,0s8)

(5,795)

(838)

14,471)
Net debts 18,046) (10,791)

Other assets Liabilities from financial activities

oblitation borrowlnSs borrowlng
494 (1,018) (4,s33) (3,352) (8,409)

cash

Modification of lease term
Acquisitlons - finance leases

lnterest expenses

lnterest paid

(240

(126)

126

140
52

(12)

(sr)

91

126

ri,,,
511

12,443)

(42e)

429

(2,418)

52

(12)

(1,161)

7,137
Net debt as at Mar€h 31,2020 2s3 (838) {4,41r) (s,79s) (r0,791)
cash

Modification of lease term
Acquisitions - finance leases

lnterest expenses

lnterest paid

(63)

'l6t)

67

223

(36)

(1,629)

(133)

133

1,458

(s7)

101

2,788

(s3e)

539

4,406

136)

(1,629)

(836)

840
Net debt as at March 31, 2021 190 (2,280) {2,949) (3,007) (8,046)

Not€ 18: Other fl nanctal liabtlities

Particulars

Mar.h 31,2021
As at

March 31, 2020
Liability towards voluntary retirement scheme 4
Total 4

deposats received from customers
maturities of lonS-term debt

creditora

Employee related payables

Mark to market loss on forward contracts+

4

24

1,435

459

844

33

52

4

24

1,459

372

744

34

5

Particulars As at
March 31.2021

As at
March 31,2020

Provislon for Employee Beneflts obllgatlonsl
Gratuity (refer nole 43) 307 336
Total 307 336

Current

Particulars As at
Mar.h 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

Provision for employee benefits obllgations:
Compensated absences (refer note 43)

Gratuity (refer note 43)

Warranty (refer note 37)

Provision fordisput€s (refer note 37)

130

70

58

67

284

53

39
Total 32s 434



Nelco Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March3l.,2021(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwise mentionpd)

Note 20 : Other liabilities
Non-current

As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

8 11
8 17

Current

-

ridiJrory uues payaoie 

-

As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

285

10
s28

10
295 538

Note 21

Non current
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 51)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

I enterprises

currenti I

(l) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note S2)
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
lvlarch 31, 2020

167

167

3,474

19

3,749

23
3,493 3,7726r{\

/ r'rnvr \ '

tMut,leeti 'kWil
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Nelco Limited
Notes to the consoridated financiar statements for the year ended March 3L, 202L(Amount Rs in Lakhs, unless otherwjse mentioncdl

Note 22:Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations (net)

Sale of services

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales

the amount of revenue recosnisp.l in rha <tAi6-o^l
particulars

-

Revenue as p"r aontr"at"ffi
Adjustments for:
Contract liabilities
Refund liabilities

-

r uLdt

cr ru r(rss wtrn tne contracted
Year ended

March 31, 2021
Year ended

March 31, 2020

22,6L2 21,993

22,672 27,993

Note 23 (a) : Other income

I 
,articutars

,rlcres! rncome 

-

| - on bank deposits

| . on finance lease

| - On income tax refund

I

lOther non-operating income

I lnsurance claims recovered

I Lrabilities/provisions no longer required, written back

I Rent income
I Others

I

Other gains

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Unwinding of discount on financial asset measured at amortised cost

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

4

65

68

3

65

39
137

I
62

2t
21

7

62

67
105

28

1,4

136

3

3

42 6
284 249

Note 23 (b) : item

Particulars

Profit on r.le of inr"str"ntffi
r uadt

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

115

115

Q(r i\
*\r'ruMsrri+,ll .w/ u

v



Nelco Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwise mentionpd)

Note 24 : (lncrease) / decrease in inventories of stock_in_trade

decr"as" in inventories oi il_in---tr-aii

MUMET,,I 'i

-

lnr"ntorier at th" beginnir" o
Stock, in - trade
Stock-in,transit

Less : lnventories at the end of the vear:
Stock-in-trade
Stock-in-transit

Year ended
March 31,2021

Year ended
March 31,2020

1,051

L

789

7,0s2

7,138

749

1,051

1

1,138 7,052

- (85.iT-



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2O2t(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwjse mentioned)

Note benefits

I particutars

-

r;,or,<5, wages dno oolLrs 

-

Contributions to provident fund (refer note 43)
Contriouhgn5 gq 5upsrannuation ard other {unos {refe. note 43J
Gratuity (refer note 43)
Staff welfare exoenses

Year ended
March 31,2021

Year ended
March 31.2020

3,082

98

27

63

747

3,0r2
101

24

53

r77
3,411 3,361

Note 26 i Finance costs

lnterest expense on:
Borrowings

teased liabilities
Trade payables

717

133

29

74

27: Depreciation and amortisation
particulars

On prcpert). plu"t onC.q".p."ffi
On intangible assets (refer note 4(a))
On flBht of-use assets lrefer notc 4thI

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31.2020

L,730
80

420

1,7 40

62

200
2,230 2,002

Note 28 : Other

Year ended
March 31,2021

Year ended

March 31,2020

Consumption of loose tools
License fees to Department of Telecommunications

Power and fuel
Rent including lease rentals Irefer note 4(b)]
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery
Repairs and maintenance - Others
lnsurance

Rates and taxes

Freight and forwardinB
l-egal and professional charges

Director sitting fees
lnstallation expenses

Payments to auditors
Bad debts written off
Less: Provision for doubtful debts made in earlier years written back
Provision for doubtful debts

social responsibility expenses lrefer note 50)

lnformation technology expenses
Vehicle charges

12

1,575
7,7 48

201

61

1.82

455

22

13

55

315

274
229

53

214

48
24

10

7,403
1,691

193

60

164

534

16

14

208

284

184

285

35

258

';\ l=
\_/ \ ./ S)\QX.DZ



Notes to the consolidated financial stat(
t!!!:!!!:-I:.)! lokhs, untes, othe,*i," ^",,,-"-:lents 

for the year ended March 31, 2021

Nelco Limited

Note 29 j Disconrinued Operation

(i) FairValue hierarchy

The Company vde its letrerdated
of slump sate 

"" 
. ;";;;;;;"t"ot"mber 

1 2017 rnformed the sto(k exchanse about rhe aprroval of the Soard of Directors to ( ) rran5fer by way,o ow nB (a, ,nter;,ed ,;:;;l;:ff:il:;,il:HiJ,:"'i:;:i;:::":: :jlf 
,v o*""o 

',o,o "+ ^";;";;; ;:;,'.,, .,o ,NNpr) o, ,ne

;,['.'Jlff'.;::::ff,1'',1""',--- "."";;;"1;;;";,;;;il::i:ll,:il:L:1,11fl:11;];:13:,:[1:;'Illff':"X*l;:i
a composite scheme or a.,.",r",:H;TH::ffi,IiiJ:j:::["#::1,]lfsjr; ",a rrir d," ...rs.;;,,;;;;^r,;,,i';;" .ompany, throu6h
Tribunal ('N_cLr) on r,,rovember z, ,r, ."0 

"rol",l,, ij.n ;li]rL'J#,;lH:losed scheme has been approved by Nationat company Law
Scheme is effectve onty on receivin
equ ed ,ne coroanv ,o , 

" 
,,." 

"1iT 
il1il""",1'Ji;tp;-"":;[# li::;'#':[] #?JJ ji"'ff1"11",:1 ff:"[ ^i.'J.,?ift.il:

schemeascf'ecr,vpa"d'lNst ar.amaleamdtpn. __ _ '_'' "ilhrn l0 dav' upon lilng. Ro( updated he.e(ord, ro rerle( rhe
NL ' ro dre.t rfe Ro( ,o 

".ono r, 
' aporoval 5 vet lo bP obtained. Eased on rF8aradv,ce, the corrpan! hcs approdched

oeL,!ro^of \(lT,sa.nr,rpo 
"- ' rerr reco'd5 ro re \ldle rl\sL lo ls Pa 'e sr,rus a'd.a"."'t* 

""",, o,.,-n" r,n.".-"'**i",1."0*," 
"n",, 

rn"
Since, the above reorganlsatlon s
consordatedfinancraistat"r"r,r.,:r":::::Jl" 

(ompanv (holdns companv) and its two whorv owned subsidares, this has no rmprication on

Note 30 : Fair Valu€ M€asurements
Thts section Sives an overview of the
that conrain financial instrr,n"nr. 

t''n't't"ntu offinanc al nstrumentsforthe companyand provides additionalinformation on batancesheer items'he detdll< o' sr8r'a'anl accounlrng porrcF\' n(lJdr'g tnp (rrre ra ror re(o8n,t o , rhe ods,s ot n ea5,re.ent ano rhe bas s on wnrch rncorne and
expenses are recognised in respecr of each c a!s of f'"t"*' **,, iln"r."i,'"0i, i, 

""0 *r,,, '^,rr."nr 
are discrosed in the financrarsratements

This section explajns the judgements and estlmeasuredatrarvaueano*i,**.0o",fiiiiiii:ilffi1l;'ff,']:,:"]'J:H.iJ,::iil"fi:*ltffJffTl,il,:lJ::"fffi:J::
about the reliabilitv ofthe input' used in determininS fair varue, the group has;;;;;;;;;;*", ,*,rumenrs inro the three revek prercribed underthe accounting standard. An explanation of€ach levelfollows underneath thetable,

Loao - Serurity depotir

air varue oftoreign exchinBe forward contra.r

rin"nci,r 
"ss"ts 

ana ri"uliti"i "iii"iliEiiGiil?IiiilEiiGGmeam,ement ar March 31,2021

MUMtsI

w'*rr€yl

The Group't arsete and trab,tirres whrch are hF:
+ortjsedco5tforwhichfairvalUe5aredi5closedj



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 202rRs in Lakhs, unless othetwse

a'sersandtiabjtiti.smeas!reaarr"i,,"rulleiiigr"i.,"r,"
nenl.t Ma.ch 31,2O2O

ial asseisand tiabitities me.sureo ar amonisJiiior wrrictr rai,
are disclosed March 3r,2O2o

trcepi for rhose financiat ass€rs/ iabit ties mentioned n the above iab e, rhe Broup considers 1

fiT[::;:Iili:::,";::,m:;*;T*",,",,,.";;;",;;";;;;":;;;;iffi:,,i;];::;i][1:HilffJlT::1flT:1i]i:il[::
level I Leve 1 Hierarchy includes f nancial ];
tunds that have quoted price. 

lstruments measured using quoted price, This lncludes I sted equity instrLrments, traded bonds, mutual
Level 2 _ The fair value of financial nstrum€nts that are not traded in an active market is determrned us ng varuation rechnique which maximize the
[:J,In:Tji:ff,]:::ffi1,..1ij,;i:1",:, ,*,,," on ""inu.,*.rn "",",l,", 

,i"lijo.no.^t inputs required ro rair;a,,; ;;;,;,;;."", 
"."

Level3 _ rfone or rnore ofthe significant inputs s not based on obrervabre market data, ihe insrrument 6 incruded in rever 3.

(ii)Valuation technique used to determinelair value
a)Specific valuation techniqu€ used to vatoe financaatinstrum€nts inctude:

- The useofq!oted market price or dealer quotes for similar instruments,- The fairvaiue offoreign exchange forward c
,rhefa rva,ue ofrhe r;m",",",,i""".ni,*i,'Jll"fil:j;:::I;":J;IfJ:,,x::1:::i::ii,fl:;jliba,ancesheetdate

lle:l:[€ 
the current vear' there is no siSnificant movement in the items oifair varue measurements categorised within Lever 3 of the fair varue

c) The Fak value for investment in unquoted equitv sh€re were catcurated based on risk adjusted discounted rare. They are crassified as rever 3 fairvaluesrn the fairvatue hierarchy duetothe nctusion ofunobservabte i"*u ,".r0,r, ."r"iil"ry cred t risk.

(iii) Valuation processes

rhe finance department of the Sroup performs the valuatrons of financiat asser5 aid liabiltres required for financiat reponint p!rpores, inc !ding revet

i",il lllii; 'Jli:i'-ll,i;,::11ilil::iJ:i;::,i#,5:i: "" '"' '"';;;;;;;;;, ;;i, .omm,,ee and ,he f nanc"-,"". ., r".* on." 
"u"ry

(iv)Fair value offinanciatassets and liabitities m€asur€d at amortised.ost

The group uses itsjudgement
of each reporting period. For

Signiflcant Estimates

iera r oi rhe (oy assunrptron5 used ,rfd rhe mpaftoichangeslorh€5e.!sumprofsseelr)and1 
labove

\r\v



Notes to the consolidated finan€ial state
rAmau Rs in Lokhs, unress orn"r*,r" ,"n,on")l"nts 

for the year ended March 31, 2021

Nelco Limited

Note 31 : FinancialRisk Manaaement

] 
e:roue 5 activities expose it to the market ask, tiquidity rist and credit risk.I he c.ouos 5 pnnc,prr f . a-..at rrab,t,r,ee. ohe, rh.^ o" "r, *r. ._0,:;',;r., a.d oorrovvrn!

.[]:jfiLi::i::::::;i:,]n".,;:,"T"::1i;1:' ;;.;;",;,;;;:,;::;";":J,""::J:::::Jl."T"_1,"i,:;:.1,.#:1",H:'',i."i::i

The GroLrp ts exposed to market rtsk, fore gn currency nsk, lqurdiry risk and credit rhk. The 6rooithesefisl5,hecroJp. 5en.or.ndnaspmpnr
rrna.(rdr.5r8over-dncer.r-"ro,,,o, ,,"o,,"'-loo..eoordR\rmandgem"t"o-t',,""'ott""'o 

managemenl ove sees the mdndgeme'r

nec,o,p,ri,"..,a .,si";.;;;.;;;;;l,j,.lin;*:irml:iljiili::j:i:1;1,i*:ill";::fiii;
manased In accordance wirh the Group,s oot cies and risk ob/ectives 

^,, 
o*,;;;;;.,,;;;;;; nsk manasernent purposes are carried our bvspecialrsi teams indr hdve the appropr'3te sl'|lls' erDerience a-d sLoervrsion ., 

's "" 
il""r1, or- ,n"l ro rrao,ng ,n oeivar,ve, to, specrrai,ropurposes may be Lrnde(aken The Soard ofDirectors revie\4s and a,rees porr"* t".-"""r,"u** othese risks, which aresummarised berow.

credit risk is the risk that counterpany wiri nor meet its obriSation under a frnancial nstrum(The 8'Ioup s exposed to cred r nsk rrom ts operatinB activities (pr marirv rrad" ;.;;.;;;;;#:fil;ffifil'i::l::l ;:J:,iilil:, ::::::1:::lllj!T* 
rorersne{ch?nserransa.ionsandotherfinancar 

",,.,;";;i;,;;,,rneSroupconsrderstheprobabritvofderauitupon 
nital recogntionofasser""ori",t*ri*.n*o"enasiSnificantin.reaseincreditrskon

an onSoing basis throuShout each reponing period rr consrders reasorab e ."J ,;o;;;'* forwarding,rooking nformation such as adversechanSes in business, changes in the operatinS results of the counterpany, chr*" a,n" aorr),"r"nys ability to meet its obriSations etc. Financralassets are written offwhen there is no reasonable expectation of recovef,

(i) Credit Risk ManaSement
tlnancialAssets
The group ma ntains exposure in cash and cash
ndvd!a ,sk,m,sarese,,",".;.;",;;"ill::":J::::i:::[:ff:,,.:iJl:*.;::li"::il::,i"ilillfJflli,,:iilil::lli;fl?

exposures are act vety mon tored by rhe group.
The Sroupt maximurr exposure 10 

'redit 
risk as ar March 11, 2021 ..d March 31, 2020 is rhe carry ng vatue of each ctass of financ ai assets asdisclosed in the consoldeted financ alstatements

Trade receivabl€s
rrade recelvables are typically untecured and are derrved from revenue earned from customers. credit risk has been managed by the Groupthrough credit approvals' establhhing credit limits and continuousiv .onito.ing the creiitwonhiness of customers to which rhe Group grantscredit tefms in the normal course of business. on account of adoption of rnd A-s 109, ,ia iror, ,r", 

"rp"*"d 
credit ross moder ro assess theimpairment loss or Sain' The Group uses d provision matrix and forward-looking information ano an assessment of the credit risk over th€expected life ofthe financialassetto compLrte the expected credit ross allowance fo, trade recervaotes.

lndivid!al receivab es which are known to be unco lect ble ar€ written off by reducing the carry ng amount of rrade receivabre and rhe amount orthe loss is recognised in the staterrenr of profit and loss wirhin other expenses.

Thre€ customers as at March 31, 2021 and four customers as at March 31, 2020 contributed to more than 5% of the total balance of trade

::;::liJ:;.**,"t","ross)rrom 
these customers was Rs. 1,s44 Lakhs and Rs.2,117 Lakhs as at March 31,2021 and as at March 31, 2020

The amount orTrade receivabte outstanding as ar March 31, 2O21and March 31, 2020 ts as foltows:

181- 369 dayt

As at March l1.2O2O f \
2,995
3,824

1,811
2,r43

613
604

672 6,rsJ
7,180z\.r-.(

Vt'-'*-..')r
/ rnu, t '\
Irrrutrsr- r, ''ll
,\sJ.t:r/

\^

liabilitles nor denominared in lndian

at fired.ate, periodic monitori.E



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financiat

Rs in Lakhs, untess otherw6e
statements for the yea. ended March 31, 2021

lil neconritiatio@

ff"iT:Jil:"T ""t -pect anv srsnrfrcanr ross from non performance bv counterpa^ies on credir granred durinB the frnanciaryear that has nor
Other than trade receivables and financialassets.
Managemenrbe ieves that the partiesfrom wt
ne8,ieib,e or ni, and accor. ",ft ,;;,;;"; l,'j,llffiii :::1,::""J::"::J::: ;:ff"T::::'l;,"" the ob,,sations and risk of defau,t is

credil rrsk from bahnces with bank and financial institutions is managed bv the Groupt treasury department in accordance with the Group,s

(8)Liquidiry Rist
Liquiditv r sl refers to the fisl thar ihe Group c;
'LlrLen,I'qLd,rvanoens,,";|-,ii;;";;;J"*i,""']::: ::::"""::"::l:"-'."1:rheobrectveotlquidrtv sr'manaserren,,5ioma,nra,r
contin!ityorrundinBandrre,o,ity*rroughthe,il;fi;#il,ff:,il;:il,""l:,:;:,,"#:i;11il:.i:,"":i:ljj;",ff::,r",,
wjl alwavs have sLrffrc ent liquiditv to meet its liabllities when due through r;Lrrt,lri oi* i"*."r,. ooo, the Group has unutirized credit rimts

(ll f inancint arrangements
The Broup had access to the fotiowing undrawn borrowinB facitities at the end of the reportinS periodl
Pa (ur.r9

Exp rinS withii one vear (Ba.k overdcft, Term Loans and other fac i|esl

-

.he Sank has an uncondir,.^rt a"r,l^ll"llilil-l]t]t--

March 31.2021 March 31,2020

4,796 2,878

2,alrne 6ank has an unconditiooat right to cancet *,eii i-ffiii-J/ fffiiiperiod ofthe loan/ facitity, withour any prior notice to the 6roup.

lii) Maturities of fi na nciat tia bi ties

l::,tj,ffi::,H i:iifi,"",tn" ""'r'' 
rinanc a I ab,rit es inro rerevant malurity sroupinss based on their conrractuar maturities ror arr non

JI"" il::i; iX.'"",'#;; ::""i'.iJ: ;::ji" -"*'tuar undiscounted cash nows. Barance due within 12 months equar their carryins barances as

lc ) Market Risk
(i) Forei$ currency risk
lvarket risk is the risk that the fair value of fLrture cash flows of a financiar instftrment w fl fructuate because of changes in market pr ces. Marketrlsk comprises three types of riskl interest rate risk, currency risk and other prce risk, ,rah ,, 

"orn,, 
price rigk and commodity risk. Financralnstruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, trade payables, deposits, tnrestments, trade recetvables, other financialassets.nd derivative financiat instrLrments

of the loan/ facitityJan-ctioned at any time durinS the

Allowanc.ton March 31, 2O2O



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021tAmo"ht Rs..n-!a\h, untps\ ahp,wbe rne.rrcicdl

(alforeiBn currency risk erp
Ihe groLrp,s exposure to foreigf currency risk at the end of the repo.tinB per od are as follows

Thesensitiv tyofprofiiorloss to changes ntheexchangeratesarisesmainlycurrencydenomrnatedfrnanciarinstrurnEnr

(il)Cash flow and fat.value interest rat€ rtsk
rhe group's main interest rate risk arises from long_term borrowinSs wrth variabte rates, which expose the group to cash ftow interest rate risk.

(a)lnterest Rale risk exposure
Theexposure oitheSroup's borrowinSs to interesr rate changesatthe end ofthereponinSperiod are as foriowg.

(b)5ensitiviry

Profit or ross i5 sensitive to higher / rower rnterest expense from borrowings as a resurt of chan8es in nterest rates.

(tiilprtce Risk

The Group does not have any financial instrument which is exposed to change in price.

Note 32 : Capital Managem€nt
Risk Management
The Groupis objectives when manaSing capita are to

_ safeSuard their abilitY to continue as a 8oin8 concern, so thar thev can con|nue to provide rerurns for sharehorders and benefirs for otherstakeholders, and
- Maintain an optimalcapitalstructure to reduce the cost of capital.

ln order to malntain or adjust the capitai structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capitat toshareholders, issue new shares orsellassets to reduce debt,
Loan covenants

under the terms of the maior borrowmr-and-facriilres, rhe Eroup rs requrred to comply with the followina financiat covenants.1 Standalo-e net wo,rh to remar^ po\trrve
2 Standalone Debt Equity ratio of maxirnuin 4:1.
3 Standatone Frxed asset coverage ratio shoutd be greater than or equatto t.174 Consotidated net debt to EBTDTA ratio shoutd be less than 4 upto Fy 2020 and 3 atter Fy 2020
5. Consolidared Debt Servtce Coverage Rario (DSCR) should be grearer than 1.10.
6. TotatOutside Liabilities/ Toiat Net Worth to be maintained betow 3 75
7. Rario ofTota Outside Liabititi€s

31, 2q20 calcutated
Nef-worth (TNW) should b€ tess than 4 as on March 31. 2021 and

for loan taken byTatanet Service, Limited.
the reponing period.

* MUMBA],/ *

erposure to ro,eien it;;;;;;

INR/USD - hcrease by 5% (Ma(h 31,2020 - S%)1
r8/Uso. oecrease by 5% (March 31, 2O2o 5%1.
HoldrnS atl orher vanabte5 co.rranr

Rate - De.r€as€ by 1OO basis poinG'



Nelco t-imited
Notes to the consolidated financial stat(
rlnount Rs n Lokhs, unres, otn",*ir" -"*^^")!ents 

for the year ended March 31, 2021

Nore 33 I Offserting financiatAssets And Financtal Llabilities
Thereare no financial assets and liabilities whlch are eligible foroffset !nderany arrangement.Colateral a8a inst bo.rowinSs
The Group has pled8ed financial instruments as collateral against a number of its Oorrowtngs. Seferfinanciat and nonlinancia cot aterat ptedsed as secu.,r, 

".".; ;;;;;;;;., ", ,.,

Note 34 : Assets ptedSe As Security

to note no. 34 for further information on

The carry ng amounts of assets p edged a5 secur ty for current and non current bofiowings are l

March 31,2021 March 31-2020
lCurre.tA3sets

lFtna ncr.r Asiets
lFirst Chars€

I rrade , e(eivables {tnctudhr nonru(ent)

I Cash & cash equivalents

I Banl balancet otherthan above
I Lo"*
I Otner ftnanciat assets

I oth"r,urr"n, 
"rr".

lrotat 
Curent lssets ptedg€d as S€orrtty

Fnrt Charge
(D Pranr and machrnery

lii)Oflice equipment
(iij) lntangible assets

(iv) Capital work-in,protress
(v) Other financlat a5sets

Second charSe 
Total(a)

{i)Buildint
(ii)Plant and machtnery

{iii)Office equipment

rotarNon-curent assets pr€ds.d a, secu*y ,J,"fil:I,
Iot.l Ass€ts pledScd .s s€curlty

5,814

1,138

916

35

60

1,625

347

7,026

1,052

1,311

32

141

7,7U
1.051

9,935

3,356

2

161

362

r7

!2,?17

3,434

2

178

281

17

3,904

82

591

3,972

96

9A2

4,912
4,8r6

18,751

/ N.: .,,

lMults, ]'
brr--; /,



Nelco Limited
Notes to the conrolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Anount Rs in Lokht unless othetwite mentioned)

Note 35 | share

March 31,2021 Mar.h 3r,2020I
2

3

l1!t prolit after tax attribut.bleto equity 5harehotders {Rs. in Lakh,
WeaShted avehge num!., of Equity sharet

EPs(Rs.) I8lsicanddilut dl(Fac!valuep€rsh6reis. 10)

7,2X6

2,24,77,461

5.42

1,438

2,24,L1,467

5.30

Note 35 | liabilities

M.rch 31,2021 Mar.h 31.2020claims...in5tth.3.oUpnot!ctnowl.d!.d.idebt.omplise5of]-
- Sales t.r and s.rvic. t.rcl.ims dispuied bythegroup retati.S to issu.s ofapplic.bitityand ct.3sinc.tion

- Futur. c.sh outfl@3lh r.spst of abov. mane,r are dere,mi.abt. onlyo. r*.ipt orjudgm.ntr/dEirion, pendina
.t va,iour fo.um3 / .uthontl.3
lncom€ tax d.m.nd atainttth. sroup not acknowr€dsed as d.br.nd not provid€d fo!, rcr.tins to issues ofdedudibirity
.nd taEbirty in r6p.ct of whrch 8roup u rn appe.t.

4,O72

164

559

4,099

168

559

FUtu.eca'hootflow3ln.e5petoftheabovemattersaredeterminatIeoffi
noanv does nothave anv iontThe

The above flgu res for contlng€nt ll.bllltlesdo not include amounts towards certain additional penaltieyht€rest that maydevotve on the company ln the event of an
edverse ou&ome asthesme ls subl€ctive and not capable of belnSpresently quantifled, Unless otherwise stated below, the manaS€ment believesthaL based on tegal
advlce, the outcome of th€se conthgencies willbe favourable and that a loss is not probabte, further outflow of resources i5 not pr;abte ln etther cases.

Thesupreme courtoflndla ln the month offebruarv 2019 had passed a iudg€ment relathg to deflnttion of waSes under the provident Fund act, 1952. The management is
of the vlew that there are lnterpretatlve challenges on the appllcatlon ofthejudSement retrospectively. Bas€d on the legal advice and in the absence of retiable
measurement of th€ provislon ior€erlier perlods, the Company has made a provision for providentfund contrlbuflon pursuantto the jud8ement on ly from the date of
supreme courtorder. The company willevaluate its position and update lts provision, tfrequired, on reaeivin8tufth€r ctarityon the subject. the company does not expect
any material impact ofthe same,

Not€ 37 : Dl..lo3urc rt roqulrrd bY lnd A5 37 -'P.oylslon., .ontlnS.nt Ll.bllltl...nd conttngcnt Assltlr .r.t y.er end arG.r tollow,:
a) Provlsion for disputer represents ettlmates made for probable llabilities arisinS out of pendtn8 assessment proceedtngs with vartous Government authorities. The

lnformation usuallv requked by lnd a5 37 - "Provisions, conung€nt Liablllties and confln8ent assets", ir not dtsctosed on &ounds that it can be eJ(pected to
preiudice the lnterests of the 8roup The thln8 of the outflow with regard to th€ sald matter dep€nds on th€ exhaustion of remedies avaitabte to the group u nder
the law and hencq the group ts not able !o reasonably ascertain the timin8 of the outflow kafer note 36),

b) Provision for warranty relates to warranty provlslon made in respect of sale of cenain products, the estimated .ost of which is accrued at the time of sal€. The
products are 8enerally covered under free warranty p€riod ranSingfrom one to thre€ years.

c) Provision for future losses perteins to certain onerous contracts where the unavoidable costs of meeting the oblisatons as per the contrEcts exceed the economic
benefits expected to be recelved from it.

d) and provislon durinS the year are as follo

March:11,2021 March 31.2020 March 31,2021 M.r<h 31,2020

AddrPrcvirion durinS th. y..r
lLcsr: Utlliration durin8th. y.ar
(1e5, I neve6.l duint th. y..r
Add: Efectr ofunwindinS ofdkcountr on plovision

39

28

90

2

125)

\27)

58

Cl0316g balanc.
chsrined a3 curr.nt lr.r.r .otc 19(b))

5f
67

39

39

58

53

58

53
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Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless othetwise mentjonetl)

Note 39

ended [4arch 31,2021.
pertains to earlier period. r",",uO

Note 40 :

Note 41 i

Note 42 : Setment reponint
Based on evaluation of key financial parameters, the Group believes that it operates in only one reportable 5egment i.e. Network systems andgrgoItjiuly the financiai resultrara*Dorte.l a( <inoto ran^drhr. .-reportable segment from year ended March 31. 2020.

tax
particulars

Prorlt on sale ofinvestment tar at tpeclalrate
:lat'Jtory lar rate (%)
Slatulory Tar Rare (%). Long Term Capitat carn
Tax at lndlan tar rate

lDeferred 
tax recotnised for the first time

| 'npdcr o. arLourt of ddootron or t1d A5116
Otherq

Oeferred tax recotnised for earlier years
WoV of property, ptant and equipment*

Other ltems
Additional Tax Benefit due to indexation benefit for catcuiation of ton8 term capitat gainTax on income at different rates
Others

-

' Deferred tax credit of Rs. 9a lalnsffi

Year ended

March 31. 2021
Year ended

March 31 2o2n
1,588

29.72%
2110v"

1,911

u5

23-30%
462

2

{s4)

127))ql

583

11

(66)
(23)

77
:sz I 588

other

Particulars

-

E!rrmated amount of contracts rem;

Year ended
March 31 2021

Year ended

March 31. 2020
advance paid)

rror Provloeo ior { net ot

Est mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on other acco!nt and not provided ior ( net of

-

299

7,61a

107

206

Contra.t<" i<ofin

Contract revenue recopnrserJ rl, rflno

Year ended
Mar.h 31,2021

Year end€d

March 31,2020

Aggregate amount of contract costs incurred and recogn sed profits ( ess recognised losse, upto year endRetention .aoney for contracts in proSress as at balance sheet date
Gross Arnount due from Customers for contract work {Assets) as at balance sheet date
GIoss Amounr due to.ugtorners for contra.t w. or\ lL,dbitrtvr e(,.h:trn-a.h... --,- 45



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated tinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021(Atuount Rs jn Lokhs, unless othcrwi<c dc^ti^^dt

Note 43 : Employee benefit obligations
Shon-term employee benefits
These benefits include salaries and wages, includrng other monetary and non-monetary benetits, compensated absences whichare.eilher non-accumuJating or ac(,rmutared ano .rp",t"o to ;" ;.;;"; ;;;;;::;:,period. !v uc dvdreu wlrnln tweive months after the end of the reportjnS

[ong-term employee benefits
i) oefined contribution plans

Groups's contribution paid/pavable during the year to superannuation fund and Esrc contribution are recognised as anexpense and included in Note 25 undpr the headtng "contriOuttons io sri"-r-nira,,o" 
"n, 

o,n"l' runds,, are as underi

The Group operates the following funded/unfunded defined benefit plans:-Provident Fund (Funded)l
The croup makes provident Fund contribut
,equ.red,oconr, oLre a **,*;,,;;,,."""i,':.:"[::::::1,,:,iJ;iHl'::"Tl?i:J:::,:liili1".].lJ,xi;,liilJ]i,,:
iT'il:ffj:"':ff :1X'J'rTi.tJ:l ;:il:;'.' " ""st 

bv the Group rhe Ru 
"' "iii" o,o,r', ,*'aent rund administered bv the

b0 ot the Employees, provident Fund scher 
e unable to pay int€rest at the rate declared by centrai covernment unie, para

assets ot the fund and th" .'",rrn on ,r," inu,lll 
1952 then the shortfall shall be made Sood by the crorp. nuuing ,egara_tJiii

3stments, the Group does not e)(pect any shortfall in the foreseeableiutu-re.

ln terms of Suidance note issued bv the rnstrtute of Actuar,es of hdra, the Actuary has provrded a varuation of provident fund

l:"roJll,::;:' "" 
t" *'umptions listed and determrned that there rs no ,n"nr.'rirrl,"rr^,, ar, 2o21and rvrarch 31. 2020,

The detaih of fund and plan asset position are Biven below:

ThePlana5set5haVebeenprimari]yinVe5t€dlngovernment5ecurities
Assumptions used in determining the present value of obligation of inter€st rate Suarantee under the deterministic approach j

The Group has contributed Rs 98 takhs and Rs 101 Lakhs durin8 the year ended March 31,2021 and March 31, 2o2orespectively and the same has been recogni:ed in the Statement of p;ofit aia l-orr. 
--

Provident Fund Assessment a5 per recent Supreme court rudgment

r.,,",[tjl|.,"jl: ::,:l]::.r:l::lj.::",:j y:vekananda Vi-dyamandir aod others (February 2o1e) rays down principres to
:::)::": :::.::"i,:l:y,:T"rl", the definition of ,.basic wa'es,, ;,-,r;;;;;;;;;;ffi;;,.;;;#,;Hfii,lil:
::l:::Ij,li:ij::lfil'; 1,1"i"* n"ition. have been r,,uo ,r.,"u ,fu i",i-o;"il;"1:il;#TJ:Ij:
:^::::T:::"1:::.:i::,:ent,Fundcommissioner/supreme courr ,;;;;;"';;";,";;;;";l#;,:Hfi;:::.i,:::
l:ledons by provident Fund authorities, manasement does not expect any _ateriat i.pJct In ;:';r;: r:::i*""T:

Sr, No Particulars
Yearended

March 31, ZO21 March 31, 20ZO
a)

-

2A

1
I

ll, Oenned Benefit ptan 2t 24

ctan assets at pertodi nd-,Iira iii]ii
Presentvalue of benefft obtitation at Deriod end

of lndia {GOl)bond yl€td
RemaininS term to maturity of portfolio

@)// \



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwise mentionptlt

-Gratuity (Unfunded)
Gratuity is payabre to alr erigibre empiovees of the company as per the provrsrons of the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 0r asper the Company,s scheme, whichever is hrgher. the plan is unfunded. 

- '-'' - -, -,s l

Under the Act, every employee who has corn{",ta,.*n,",,v)ro,".;:;;;;;;;;"?':iil":,:".;:H:i"ffi:;,ffi::::j;::::::f:iHi:::iiil:1."
service and sarary at retirement aSe The Graturty scheme provides for a ,r,no ,r. ,u-"* ,"oe on exit either by way of
llXilillli,].i,il',liilitvorvoluntarvwit*rawal rhebeneritsared*'"*""i,i"i,.',,,,"arsararyandtheperiodor

Thejollonwing table sets out the status of the defined benefit scheme and the amo!nt recognrsed in the consoridated financiar

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of rndia securities as at the balance sheet date for theestimated term of the obtiBations.
This plan typlcally exposes the Group to actuarial risks such asia) lnterest rate risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.b) Demographic risk _ This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality,withdrawal' disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straighr forwardand depends upon the combination of sarary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria.c) Salarv risk rhe present val!e of the defined benefit ptan riab,,,,t 

't 
.i.r,riJ i, ."i"rence to the iuture sararies or pranpart cipants. As such, an ncrea5e in the salary of the plan particlpants wil rncrease the plan,s liability

The e5timate of fut!re salary increases considered, takes inro account the inflation, seniorty, promotion, incr€ments and otherre evant lactors.

v

in
Panicul6rr .

Currentservjce cost

March 31,2021 March 3l,2O2O

36
27

29

5353

Palti.ulars

Ouetocta.6ein
oue to chante rn frnancra a!sumpoons

-nEures a.e below roundinr off no.mH

A5 at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020

(1) 16

(28) 3l

in D€fined

-

P ese.: vdtue ut DBC ar ihe oeg,rnin-
Lurenl service.osr
rnrerest cosr (Net)
Liabiliries rransferred lnlacquisirtons
Remeasurement (gain)/ oss

-

Pr€rent value of o8o at the end _

March 31,2021 March 3t,2020

389

36
21

(28i
147\

3r6

24

5

31

377 l8c

Acttrarial assumptions for valuarioh .f

Discount rate
Expected rate of escatation n satary
Rate of employee turnover

March 31,2021 March 31,2020

6 86%
1 50%

8.00% p.a.

5.00% p a.

6 84%
7.50%

8.00% p.a.

500%pa.

rnoian nssurea liv-iiilifr
(2006-08) Uhimate



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the yea, ended March 31, 2021
lAmount Rs in Lokhs, untess othetwise mentioned)

Sensitjvity

Sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to chanSes in the weighted principat assumptions (white holdinS all otherassulnptions constant) isr

Paniculars
Chan8e in

March 31,2021 March 31,2020
lncrea5e in Decrease in

Oiscount rate
Expected rate of escatation in salary

. -Rate ot emotovee turnover
'liSures are betow round np off norm

tv"
tyr

\22)
25
11l

26

{23)
I

122)
25

26
(23)

round n8 adopted by rhe grou;.
The sensitivity anatysis presented above ma
is unrikery that ti. .r,,"g" i" ",,,,pi;;i;::,:"i::J:i:^i:iffii,jiff:,:::T::" 

in the derined benerit obri'ation as it

corretated. Furthermore, . pr"r"*ing ii" ,uove sensitrvity anatysis, ,r" ,."r""i"r,r"'ir1"J:"T^,I"ff:fltlHillrr::been carcurated using the projected unit credit method at the end of;he raoor* 0".'-, *n,an ,s the same as that appried incalculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balanc" rt 
"",. 

" '- -

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity anatysis from prior years.
Delined benefit liability and employers contributions
The weiShted average duration of the proiected benefit obligation is 8 years ( 2o2o - 8 years). The expected maturrty analysis ofundiscounted gratuity is as follows:

iii) Other Long-term employee benefits
compensated absences which are accumulated and not expected to be availed within twelve months after the end of thereporting period in which the emplovee renders the related service ur" .u.orn'r"o 

_al 

" 
riability at the present value of thedefined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date. compensatea absencls o .".ornouo as a liabjlity based on actuarialvaluatlon of the defined benefit obtigatiof as at the batance sheet date.

An amount of Rs' 52 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 73 Lakhs) has been charged to the statement of profit and Loss for th€ year endedMarch 31, 2021 towards Compensated absences.

Provision for compensated absences has been made on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at the Balance sheet date.

The discount rate is bas"d on th" p,"u.iling
estimated term of the obliBations.

lst following year

2nd following year

of years 6 to t0

Actuarial assumptions for valuation of

March 31, 2021 March 31,2020

Expected rateof escatation in satary
Rate of Employ€e Turnover

The discount

6 a6%
1.50%

8.00% p a.

5.00% p.a

6-a4%
1 50%

8.00% p a.

5.00% p.a

-4'a
tsr



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwjse mentionpdl

Note 44 I Related party transactions
(A) promotor of hotdinS company

Tata Sons private L mitpd
(B) parent Company / Holding company

{c)

(D)

(El

lnterest in 5ubsidiaries are set out in note 46

Aasociate Company:
lnterest in associate are set out in note 46

Xey Managerial personnel

(i) Executive director
Mr.P.J. Nath (Mana8int Oirector and CEO)

(ii) lndependent and Non-Executjve Directors
Mr.R.R BhinBe (Non-Executive Director)
Ms. Hema Hattan8ady (tndependent Director upto January 2l,2O2Ol
Mr.Kailasam Raghuraman (tndependent Director upto January 27, 2O2O)
Mr.l(rishnan Ramachandran (tndependent Directot rp@ fanuaty 27, 2OZO)Mr. Rahut Chandrakant Shah (Non Executive Direoo. rpto OaoO", Z+, iOiS)
Iv1r. Anand Agrawal (Non Executjve Director w.e.f October 24, 2Ol9)
Mr. Ajay Kumar pandJ/ (lndependent Director upto w.e.f January 2g, 2O2O)
Dr. takshmi Nadkarni(tndependent Director upto w.e.f January 28, 2O2O)
Mr- K. Nara5imha Murthy (tndependent Dkectorupto r.".f tunuu,y za, iOZo)
Mr' litendra vardhaman patjl (Non_Executive Director of Tatanet services Ltd {vaterrat subsidiary) w.e.f. January 24, 2019)

March 31. 2or1(l) txecutlve Dkectora-
Shon-term emptoyee benef its
Post-employment benef its
LonS-term emptoyee benef irsr
(ii) Non Executive and tndependent Oir€ctor

296

.,

53

261
8

35
357 304'Thucrorp proudurloffi t* |

same is not identifiabte s"par"tery rna nen.lenlotT;1"::tot''' 
t *' 

'"naSerral 
personnel alonS with all emplovees, cost of

Sr.no.

Companv Llmited

(HoldingCo,)

Tata 5on5 Private
Limited

Holdinc Co-l

Nelito Systems

timited

(Associate)
1)

a)

2l
a)

llPurchare:

l*'.,
ls"**'

lo,n., r--"
lo*a""a 

*.",.a

Rent

Balance Outstanding as at yea, end

(,

2
(11)

(-;

:l

,rll

:j

20
(23)

(-;

,l
,,1

I

1;l

;tl

(-)

(;

Note : in!) rl8rr"t,n trr.tett
(ii) Related Party relationship is as identified by the group and retied upon by audjtors.(iii) ' figures below rounding off norm adopted by the Broup.



Nelco Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note45: Additionalinformation as required by Paragraph 2 ofthe Gen€rarrnstructions for preparation ofconsoridated Financialstatements toschedure,to the Companies Act, 2013

Net assets,l.e., total assets minus total tiabitities
ofthe €ntlty ln the croup tu.t lvlar.h 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

hdlan Associatc (tnv€stm€nt as p€r equtty method)
Nelito Systems Limited .+

Share in protit or loss
I{ame of the entlty in th€ GroW Year ended March 31,2021 Yearencl€d March 31, 2020

As% of consotidated net As % of consotidated n€r
Profh and Lors

lndian Subddtartes

Tatanet Services Limited
Nelco Network Products Limited

lndlan Associat€ (tnv€stment as perequity method)
Nelito Systems Limited .*
Adjustment on consotidation

58.0996

40.94%

0.08%

0.00%

0.89%

7l,a

506

1

11

9s 13%

39.22%

1.0.28%)

0.00%

{34.08%)

1,368

564
(4)

(4so)Total
100.00% 7,236 r00.00% 1,43E

c. Share in Other

rounding

d. Share in Total

' fi8ures betow rcundinE off no-miaoliiily the grorp.

statefients forthe year ended March 31, 2020.

** The Board of Oirectors ofthe company at its meetinS held on september 21, 2018 decided to exit from Nelito systems Limited (an Associatecompany) considerlng the intention of the 8oard, this investment in the Arao.i"t" r,uJL""n at"rrified as,Assets classified as hetd for sate, inaccordance with TNDAS 105.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the company sold investments in Nelito systems Limited (associate company), which was ctassitied as

S:,::l:.t:::]ill:j-,:1,:,'r:.:..In" :":uttant sain on sate of investments ias been oiscrosed as an exceptional item in the standalone

lncome
Name ol the entity in the c;;t Yearend€d Mar.h 31, ZO21 Year ended Mar.h 31, 2O2O

As % ofconsolidated net
Other Compreh€nsiv€

a5 % of conSolidated net
Other Comprch€nsiv€

Parent

Nelco Limited
lndian Subsidiari€s
Tatanet Services Limited
Nelco Network Products timited
hdian Asroclate (tnvestm€ntas p€r equity methoc,)
Nelito Systems Lrmited .t

100.0016

0.@96

0.m%

0.00%

r00.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

(31

* figures below roundinc off no
too.oe/. t81---------- 100^0$6 {311

of the €ntity ln the Group Year ended March 31,2021 Year€nded Mar(h 31, 20ZO
As % of consotidated net

Tota I Comprehen5lve

Network Products t-imited

Assoclat. (lnvcstm.ntas p€r lqutty method)
Syst€ms l-imtted..



Nelco timited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021(Amount Rs in Lokhs, unless otherwise mentionpd)

Note 46 :
(a)

Note47: Finance lease receivables
The has on finance lease VSAT

Sr. Particulars
ecerva0le Dy the

As at
March 31,2021

As at
March 31,2020

a.

b.

c,

l!v,,,r u,,Enrr ror mtntmum tease payments in

lrelatlon to non-cancellable operatlnt leases are
payable as follows:

Not tater than l year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
tater than 5 years

185
236
221

438 451

{b)

lnterest ln other entities
Subsidiaries

The group's subsidiaries at March 31, 2021are set out berow. unress otherwise sta

:::,".,,",H::il:Xl:::!,:I:lii:iT:jljilj[:ff*y,",j..#J:ffi;ili,i:"J.:[,'flil:::il.Tfl1i1?il;[:i[

The Eoard of Directors of the company at its meeting held on september 21, 2018 decided to exjt from Nelito Systems Limrted (an Associate
ilJll.T]"Tiii"illlthe 

intention ofthe Bot,.a, tt it inu",tr"ni in in" orr-* n"o o*n crassified as ,Assets 
crassified as herd ror sare, in

During the year ended March 31' 2o2o' the company sold investments in Nerjto systems Limited (associate company), whjch was crassified as
il:"i::i,1"','#:iilii[ffi::XJr"Ji J::;surtant 

sa n on sare or,",",i.,"""'n", *", a,,.ro."a 
", "" ",."iool'u,li"i,n,nu u"nr",o".

Note43 l As a pan oftransition to Goods and services Tax (Gsr) in June 2017, the-company and its subsidiary carried forward the cenvat/servicetax/sales tax input credit balance as on March 31, 2021 for future seloff against Gsr payabre agSretating to Rs. 116 Lakhs. However, due totechnical slitch on the GsrN portal, the comp"nv 
"na 

it. .ruriaiu.y-.orto not t r" tr" i .n r ;;ff ;;;;;;il;;"r.ribed period incrudins theextended filing period rhe company and its subsidiary filed a writ petition in ttre xon'ute xigt, corrt or e;ri"v for alowing the carry forwardof the input credit balances However, vide it, 
"r0",. 

a""J ,u.r.i z'0,2020, the petition was a,rrirr"J.rj ii" .l",m of the company wasdisallowed' with respect to its subsidiary, the petition i5 pen;in; f;;iearing with the Hon,ble High coun of Bombay. tn view ofthe multiplejudgements by various High Courts in lndia on tf,i, ,att", ,hiif,-rrpports the Company,s claim and based on the advice received fromindependent legal counsel, the company exp".,, ao ,".or"r,t o iniJicredit balance. The company has filed special Leave petition in Hon,ble
ili::l:"t:.tr il:riH 

hasteen admifted bv supreme court. ln'Jew orthis, no provision ha. r""n ,"J" i,i,r," uooks or account asainst

Note49 i The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from covlD-19 in the preparation of these consolidate financial statements. TheGroup continued to provide vsAT connectivity, -ainterance services and vsAT equipment on rease. However, the deproyment of new vsATswas lower than previous year due to slower economic .erival across ,arious secto.s and rertriation, in ior"a"nt during the financiar year.considerinS the revival of economic activity, improvement in customer order frow and ba."a on r" irrorraiio,-n avairabre, the managementhas evaluated and considered the possible impact ofthe aforesaiJsit-uation on ttre business of the Group, including adiustment to the financialresults considerinS the above and 610up's current financial position, there is no materiar u"."n"ini, o,iir,"-o-rp,s abirity to do business as agoing concern and there are no impairment indicators for any of the .rr"t, ofth" crorp. Tlr" n-rr a*i,"r", i" monitor any materialchanges to future economic conditions and they may ue ainereniirom the estimates made as on the date ofthe financiar resurts.

ownership interesuretdlfili



Nel.o timited
Notes to the consolidated financial statema
anount as,n touts. untess atne;;;;,'";""u 'ot 

the vear ended March 31, 2021

Note 50 i torporate SocjatResoonsibility

Not€ 51 :

ilote 52:

inerE are no Mrcro and smar Enrerprises to whom th. G 
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Ihe dudrr oI con5otidaled findncrdt !idlemenrs of r
Baflrbor and associates LLp. 

he comparY for the previous vear was carri€d out by a ilrm of chane.ed Accountants otherthan s,R.
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The croup w,,.ssess the rhru., o,,n".oou.n""ll 
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beneriis recerved Presrdentiarassenr
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Note 54: Pievious year,s frtures have been regrouped/reclassifed, wherever necessary, to conform lo the cu(enl years ctassificarionsignature to Notes forming p.rt otConsotidated Financiar St.temenrs,,1,,to,,54,,
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